UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

AD851417

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM

Distribution: Further dissemination only as directed by Army Mobility Equipment Command, Attn: AMSME-QRT, 4300 Goodfellow Blvd., St. Louis, MO 63120, MAR 1969, or higher DoD authority.

AUTHORITY

USAMERDC ltr, 23 Aug 1971

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED



ま

801

ないたかというないないたちになったうと

T L

ę....

AD

RDT&E PROJECT NO.

USATECOM PROJECT NO. 7-3-0239-09

INTEGRATED ENGINEERING AND SERVICE TEST OF EFFLUENT FUEL TESTER

FINAL REPORT

ΒŸ

DANIEL S. GAFFORD

2LT FREDERICK G. WEDELL

JOSEPH T. HARVEY

MARCH 1969

1 · · · · ·

atta: AINSME-ERT 4360 Holdellow proveral. It Kaulo Miss 63120 This document specific prior (,,)

~<u>6</u>]

U S ARMY GENERAL EQUIPMENT TEST ACTIVITY FORT LEE, VIRGINIA

FOR INFORMATION A MEN

ACTION BY HIGHER AUTODED Y LEASTING

This document may be further distributed by any holder <u>only</u> with specific prior approval of <u>Commanding General</u>, U. S. Army Mobility Equipment Command, St. Louis, <u>Missouri</u>.

٦

. .

Destroy this report when it is no longer needed. Do not return it to the originator.

The findings in this report are not to be construed as an official Department of the Army position. DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY HEADQUARTERS, U.S. ARMY TEST AND EVALUATION COMMAND ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND, MARYLAND 21005



1. No. 1

AMSTE-GE

29 APR 1963

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

Commanding General U. S. Army Materiel Command ATTN: AMCRD-JG Washington, D. C. 20315

1. References.

a. Final Report of Integrated Engineering and Service Test of Fuel Tester, Effluent, RDT&E Project No. 1D643324D58810, USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-06 with USATECOM letter to AMC, 6 May 1968.

b. Final Report of Engineering Test (Desert) of Effluent Fuel Tester, Totamiter, 50 GPM and 400 GPM, USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-07, January 1969, YPG. (Inclosure 1)

c. Final Report of Integrated Engineering and Service Test of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-09, March 1969, USAGETA. (Inclosure 2)

2. Approval Statement. Subject reports are approved.

3. <u>Background of Test</u>. The effluent fuel tester consists of a group of components which provide a means of monitoring the effluent fuel stream from a filter/separator to assure that fuel is not contaminated with water or solids. Testing was conducted on a 50 GPM size unit and a 400 GPM size unit at each test site.

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

a. An integrated engineering and service test (arctic winter) was conducted by the U. S. Army Arctic Test Center from 12 December 1967 to 24 March 1968. The results of this test were forwarded by reference 1a. In view of the results of the more extensive tests which are discussed herein, the USATECOM position concerning suitability for use in the arctic is hereby withdrawn.

b. An engineering test (desert) was conducted by Yuma Proving Ground from 27 May 1968 through 6 December 1968 (reference 1b).

c. An integrated engineering and service test (intermediate climate) was conducted by the U. S. Army General Equipment Test Activity from February 1968 through February 1969 (reference 1c).

4. Test Results.

a. The equipment, as tested, failed to meet essential requirements of the approved military characteristics as follows:

(1) The effluent tester was not sufficiently accurate in registering the presence of injurious amounts of contaminants as evidenced by a wide variance between meter readings and actual contamination (Tables 1 and 3 and graph 1, Appendix I, reference 1b).

(2) The tester failed to detect contaminants automatically and continuously as evidenced by two failures of the amplifier at high ambient temperatures (paragraph 2.4.4, reference 1b).

(3) The tester was not adequately resistant to rusting. The steel conduit between the photocell and the conduit box on both testers rusted (paragraph 2.4.4c, reference 1b).

(4) The tester failed to meet the criteria regarding operation in the desert environment as defined in AR 705-15, Change 1, as evidenced by two failures of the amplifier (paragraph 2.4.4a, reference 1b).

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

(5) The tester was not of one size. Two sizes (50 and 400 GPM capacities) were furnished; two sizes were necessary for detecting the wide range of flow rates.

(6) The tester was not sufficiently rugged as evidenced by chart recorder failures (paragraph 2.5.4d, reference 1c).

b. An analysis of the final reports reveals that seven deficiencies and six shortcomings remain.

(1) Deficiencies:

(a) The amplifier at an ambient temperature of 113° F would activate the contaminant warning bell and caused the fuel flow to be shut off even though there was no contaminant 1° esent in the test system (Appendix III, reference 1b).

(b) When the ambient temperature was higher than 105° F, the amplifier when activated by the contaminant simulator button being depressed would close the control but would not allow the control valve to reopen when the simulator button was released (Appendix III, reference 1b).

(c) Fuel leakage from the contaminant simulator button when it is depressed creates a safety hazard (paragraph 5a(1) below)).

(d) The amplifier contaminant meter readings were inaccurate (paragraph 5a(2) below)).

(e) The recorder door was not adequately scaled to prevent damage to the recorder when exposed to rain (paragraph 5a(3) below))

(f) The draft technical manual was not clear or accurate (paragraph 5a(4) below)).

SUEJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-6239-67/09

(g) The test item lacked the sensitivity required for dealong solid contaminants (paragraphs 2.4.2 and 2.4.5, reference 1c).

(2) Shortcomings:

(a) Repair parts and required special tools were not furnished with the test items (paragraph 2.2.4, reference 1c).

(b) A second power supply battery was required to permit uninterrupted operation during frequent required recharging (paragraphs 2.4.11 and 2.5.4, reference 1c).

(c) The dial indicator/chart recorder scale divisions are too large for accurate reading (paragraphs 1.4c(3) and 2.4.2.4, reference 1c)).

(d) Internal corrosion of the flow shut-off valve solenoid caused failure of the flow shut-off sytem (paragraph 2.6.3, reference 1c).

(e) The socket head cap screws on the lamp holder were inaccessible with available tools (cap screws should be compatible with the available hex-head wrench) (paragraph 2.6.3d, reference 1c).

(f) The chart recorder failed once on each of the testers. They were replaced by the developer and the cause of failure was not determined (paragraph 2.6.3e, reference 1c).

5. Comments.

a. The following problems reported in final reports, references 1b and 1c, have been reclassified as follows:

(1) Leakage of fuel from the contaminant simulator button was reported as a shortcoming (paragraph 2, Appendix III, reference 1b). Since leakage of fuel presents a potential safety hazard, it is reclassified as a deficiency.

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

(2) There was a wide variance between amplifier contaminant meter readings and actual contamination introduced for test purposes (paragraph 2.4.5, charts 1 and 3, Appendix I, reference 1b). This condition is reclassified as a deficiency because the meter indicated much higher contamination than the actual amount.

(3) The recorder door was not adequately sealed. Thus, rain could enter the recorder and cause it to become ronoperational. This is reclassified as a deficiency (paragraph 2.4.4b, reference 1b).

(4) The draft technical manual was not clear or accurate (paragraph 2.5.4, reference 1b and paragraphs 2.7, 2.9, 2.10 and 2.11, Appendix III, reference 1c). This is reclassified as a deficiency. Satisfactory maintenance could not be performed with the furnished manual.

(5) The test item was not of one size capacity as specified in the military characteristics and reported in paragraph 1.1, Appendix III, reference 1c. This is classified as neither a deficiency nor shortcoming since the concept of the two sizes did not adversely affect usage.

(6) Two shortcomings reported in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2, Appendix III, reference 1c, relate to desired characteristics and are therefore not considered to be shortcomings because they do not adversely affect the performance of the item.

b. The demonstrated reliability of the test item under intermediate climatic conditions was at least 90 per cent at 90 per cent confidence level based on 532 test hours, a mission time of 15 hours and one failure. The reliability of the items tested to detect contamination accurately and stop flow is considered to be inadequate (paragraphs 2.4.2 and 2.4.5, reference 1c). Although reliability was not determined for desert conditions because of limited test time, reliability is considered to be unsatisfactory because of the amplifier failures encountered (Appendix III, reference 1b).

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

6. Conclusions.

a. The items, as tested, and the draft technical manual are unsuitable for Army use.

b. The maintainability of the effluent testers was unsatisfactory because of the inadequacies in the draft technical manuals as reported in paragraph 2.5.4, reference 1b and Appendix III, reference 1c. Maintainability should be adequate when the draft technical manuals have been corrected and improved as recommended herein.

7. <u>Recommendations</u>.

a. All deficiencies and as many as possible of the shortcomings identified in paragraphs 4b(1) and (2) above be corrected.

b. Two effluent testers (of each size) corrected as recommended herein be furnished to USATECOM for check test.

c. Corrected and improved maintenance packages be furnished for test concurrent with the check test.

FOR THE COMMANDER:

Incls.
Final Rept 7-3-0239-07
Final Rept 7-3-0239-09
(3 cys ea incl)

William H. HUBBARD

Colonel, GS Deputy Chief of Staff

Copies furnished: CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCQA-E CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCRD-ET CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCRD-R CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCSF CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCMA-M CG, USAMC, ATTN: AMCMR-CP (w/1 cy ea. incl)

29 APR 1969

AMSTE-GE

4

SUBJECT: Final Reports of Engineering and Service Tests of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project Nos. 7-3-0239-07/09

7

Copies furnished (Cont'd): CG, USACDC LnO (USATECOM) (w/12 cys ea incl) CG, USCCNARC, ATTN: ATIT-RD-MD (w/4 cy ea incl) CofE, ATTN: ENGTE-E (w/1 cy ea incl) CO, USAMERDC, ATTN: SMEFB-CO CO, USAMERDC, ATTN: SMEFB-HP (w/1 cy ea incl) ACSFOR, DA (w/1 cy ea incl) OCRD, ATTN: CRDME-1 (w/7 cys ea incl) CO, USA Transp Engr Agency ATTN: MTT-TG Ft. Eustis, Va. 23604 (w/1 cy ea incl) -----

and the local

USATECOM PROJECT NO. 7-3-0239-09

1

INTEGRATED ENGINEERING AND SERVICE TEST OF EFFLUENT FUEL TESTER

TEST REPORT

BY

DANIEL S. GAFFORD Engineering Test Division

2LT FREDERICK G. WEDELL Service Test Division

JOSEPH T. HARVEY Maintenance Evaluation Division

MARCH 1969

U. S. ARMY GENERAL EQUIPMENT TEST ACTIVITY FORT LEE, VIRGINIA This document may be further distributed by any holder <u>only</u> with specific prior approval of <u>Commanding General</u>, U. S. Army <u>Mobility Equipment</u> Command, St. Louis, Missouri. (: .

なが、とないかのためのないが、「たちのない

U. S. ARMY GENERAL EQUIPMENT TEST ACTIVITY FORT LEE, VIRGINIA

USATECOM 7-3-0239-09

Final Report of Integrated Engineering and Service Test of Effluent Fuel Tester

Conducted at Fort Lee, Virginia

March 1969

Abstract

An Integrated Engineering and Service Test of the Effluent Fuel Tester was conducted during the period February 1968 - February 1969 to determine the technical performance and safety characteristics of the test item as described in the Military Characteristics, and as indicated by the particular design; and to determine the suitability of the fuel tester and its maintenance package for use by the Army.

It was concluded that: the test item meets the requirements of the Military Characteristics with the exception of the deficiencies and shortcomings (Par. 1.4a and b); technical performance was satisfactory and sufficiently accurate to register the presence of all contaminants to which it was exposed with the exception of the siliceous test dust; the test item is adequately reliable; safety provisions and capability to perform safely are confirmed--(see additional precautions, Par. 2.9.3); and human factors considerations are satisfactory with minor exceptions (Pars. 1.4e and 2.7.3).

It is recommonded that: the Effluent Fuel Tester be considered not suitable for use by the Army under limited intermediate climatic conditions $(410^{\circ} \text{ to } 100^{\circ}\text{F.})$ until the two deficiencies and as many as practicable of the shortcomings (App. III) have been corrected; draft technical manual be revised (Par. 1.6d and App. IV-D); a photocell and adapter with attached wires be issued; and repair parts listed in paragraph 1.6d be added to the prescribed load allowance.

i



Π

L.

Ì

ŝ,

The second second

.-- •

٤.

i.

١

FOREWORD

The U. S. Army General Equipment Test Activity was responsible for preparing the test plan, executing the test, and preparing the final test report.

The test was authorized by letter, AMSTE-GE, Headquarters, dated 30 The 1965, subject, "Test Directive -- USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-06/07/08/09--Fuel Tester, Effluent."

iii



Ē

ί.

1. 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT	i
FOREWORD	iii

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION

1.1	BACKGROUND	1
1.2	DESCRIPTION OF MATERIEL	1
1.3	TEST OBJECTIVES	1
1.4	SUMMARY OF RESULTS	3
1.5	CONCLUSIONS	4
1.6	RECOMMENDATIONS	5

SECTION 2. DETAILS OF TEST

2.1	INTRODUCTION	(
2.2	INSPECTION (ES)	10
2.3	PRELIMINAR OPERATIONS (ES)	12
2.4	TECHNICAL PERFORMANCE (ET)	13
2.5	OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (ST)	21
2.6	MAINTAINABILITY AND RELIABILITY EVALUATION (ST)	25
2.7	HUMAN FACTORS EVALUATION (ES)	31
2.8	VALUE ANALYSIS (ES)	32
2.9	SAFETY EVALUATION (ES)	32

SECTION 3. APPENDICES

I	TEST DATA	37
п	FINDINGS	43
III	DEFICIENCIES AND SHORTCOMINGS	47
IV	MAINTENANCE EVALUATION	51
v	REFERENCES	69
VI	DISTRIBUTION LIST	71

1.1 BACKGROUND

A need exists for monitoring the purity of fuel delivered into fuel tanks of aircraft, combat vehicles, and other equipment. The purity tolerance for aviation fuel is more stringent than for other fuels, and experience of the military services indicates that JP-4 and JP-5 fuels are more difficult to filter than other fuels. Therefore, equipment which will satisfactorily meet aviation requirements for these fuels will in all likelihood, meet the requirements for other fuels. No satisfactory equipment is available to detect harmful contaminants, liquid or solid, in a rapidlymoving fuel stream. The present tests described in Technical Bulletin QM-11-1, 27 December 1957, for determining water and sediment in the effluent fuel stream of filter/separators are too involved for use as a quick check in the field. Technical Bulletins prescribe the apparatus and equipment for testing, the characteristics and design features of which do not meet user requirements for an item of equipment suitable for monitoring the purity of fuel as it is dispensed under field conditions.

1.2 DESCRIPTION OF MATERIEL

The effluent fuel tester is a group of components which will enable an operator in the field to instantaneously monitor the effluent fuel stream from a filter/separator for water or solid contaminants to insure that contaminated fuel is not issued to using units. The unit utilizes the scattered light principle, scanning the liquid at full flow rate. A light source and photocell arranged in a pickup head assembly detect the scattered light reflected from solid or immersible liquid particles of contamination. The signal produced is amplified for operation of a direct-reading chart recorder, for actuation of an alarm bell, and operation of solenoid valve to terminate the flow in the event contamination exceeds a certain pre-set level. The test item components located within the hazardous area (as defined by the National Fire Code) are fabricated in an explosion proof configuration (pickup head assembly and electrically actuated solenoid valve). The additional components (amplifier, chart recorder, alarm bell, and power supply battery) are located outside the hazardous area and are not explosion proof. Major components are shown in Figure 1.

1.3 TEST OBJECTIVES

To determine the technical performance and safety characteristics of the Effluent Fuel Tester as described in the Military Characteristics, and as indicated by the particular design; and to determine the suitability of the item and its maintenance package for use by the Army.



Ì

Amplifier component with chart recorder and alarm bell.



Pickup head assembly.

Automatic shutoff valve.

Ì

Figure 1. Major components of effluent fuel tester.

1.4 SUMMARY OF RESULTS

. .

a. The effluent fuel tester was found to meet all requirements of the Military Characteristics except for the following which were designated as deficiencies:

(1) The fuel tester was not of one size since a 2-inch pickup head assembly with 2-inch automatic shutoff valve and a 4-inch pickup head assembly with 4-inch automatic shutoff valve were furnished for test; however, due to the wide flow rate range of up to 400 gpm, two different sizes were found to be necessary with the 2-inch size being used from 0 to 100 gpm and the 4-inch for 100 to 400 gpm.

(2) The fuel tester did not meet the requirement for automatically and continuously detecting contamination particles as specified by the current military specifications for filter/separators since the sensitivity of the item was not sufficient to detect unacceptable amounts of siliceous test dust; however, detection of red iron oxide and water contaminants was satisfactory.

b. Other requirements of the Military Characteristics not met by the fuel tester, designated as shortcomings, were as follows:

(1) The fuel tester was not found to be capable of being used with a separate device to assist in the detection of unacceptable gum content as specified by applicable military specification; however, this requirement was judged to be unrealistic and not within the state of the art at the present.

(2) The test item did not include a visual warning device to permit operating personnel to determine whether filter coalescing elements of the filter/separator require replacement; however, an audible warning device was furnished and proved adequate during test operations.

c. Shortcomings detected during test operations included the following:

3

(1) The chart recorder furnished with the test item was found to be inadequate as it did not possess the required durability.

(2) A second power supply battery is required to allow uninterrupted operation during frequent recharging.

(3) A dial indicator with smaller scale divisions and with a total range of 0 to 20 ppm is needed to increase accuracy in reading. The dial indicator presently furnished with a range of 0 to 100 ppm is not needed as critical contamination values are at the lower extremes, primarily below 10 ppm.

d. An AC-DC converter would greatly simplify fuel tester operations in a static installation where AC current is available.

e. A protective carrying case is needed to protect the amplifier, alarm bell, and chart recorder components from damage and to allow for much easier hand carrying.

f. Explosion-proof flexible conduit instead of the rigid conduit should be provided to reduce installation effort and simplify handling.

g. The test item experienced three unscheduled maintenance actions, one of which was classified as a failure. Maintenance instructions were considered inadequate and caused excessive time to troubleshoot the problems. Replacement of the solenoid, the recorder, and the adapterphotocell (as a "component") was easily accomplished. Daily maintenance is the only scheduled maintenance for the test item. Although the test item met reliability requirements, it did not meet maintainability requirements because of the inadequacy of the maintenance instructions, troubleshooting instructions, repair parts data, and special tool requirement.

h. Transportability tests were not conducted as the test items were not received individually packaged; however, due to the lightweight and small size of the test item it was judged to be capable of being transported by rail, ship, and aircraft with a minimum of disassembly or preparation and to be capable of being delivered in Phase II of airborne operations with a minimum of packaging and protective materials provided it is packaged as is normal to similar sensitive electronic equipment.

1.5 CONCLUSIONS

a. The effluent fuel tester meets the requirements of the Military Characteristics with the exception of the deficiencies and shortcomings shown in paragraph 1.4a and b and performs suitably under the intermediate climatic conditions ($/10^{\circ}$ F. to 100° F.) to which it was exposed.

b. The technical performance of the fuel tester was satisfactory and found to be sufficiently accurate to register the presence of all contaminants to which it was exposed with the exception of the siliceous test dust.

c. The fuel tester is adequately reliable, and its maintainability, although presently inadequate, will be adequate when the troubleshooting instructions and repair parts data are improved and the lamp assembly fastener problem is corrected.

d. Safety provisions and capability of the test equipment to perform safely are confirmed however, additional precautions are furnished in paragraph 2.9.3.

e. Human factors considerations of the test item are satisfactory with minor exceptions listed in paragraphs 1.4e and 2.7.3.

f. The item was designed with due consideration to value engineering aspects.

1.6 RECOMMENDATIONS

n []

i.

ι.

t,

It is recommended that:

a. The Effluent Fuel Tester be considered not suitable for use by the Army under limited intermediate climatic conditions ($\neq 10^{\circ}$ F. to 100° E) until the two deficiencies and as many as practicable of the shortcomings (App. III) have been corrected.

b. The draft technical manual be revised to incorporate the changes in Appendix IV-D and to illustrate the test item as it will be issued, including troubleshooting instructions that will enable the organizational mechanic to locate malfunctions and their causes without excessive delay.

c. A photocell and adapter (EPR L7-6) with attached wires be issued as a component.

d. The following additional repair parts be added to the prescribed load allowance:

5

(1) 1 each Chart Recorder (14869) Model 88

(2) 8 each Rolls, Chart, Recording

(3) 2 each Diaphrams for each control valve

SECTION 2. DETAILS OF TEST

2.1 INTRODUCTION

1

a. The engineering test was originally initiated by the U. S. Army General Equipment Test Activity (USAGETA), Fort Lee, Virginia, in September 1964 in accordance with the Plan of Test dated August 1964 under the Project No. 7-3-0239-02 of which the fuel tester was one of three such items tested. An engineering design test by USAGETA had been terminated prior to the initiation of the ongineering test and was reported by letter report submitted in January 1965 (Ref. 1, App. V). Subsequently, an interim report (July 1965) on the engineering portion of the integrated engineering and service test (Ref. 2, App. V) recommended that the fuel tester be deleted from the test because it failed to meet the specifications of the National Fire Code for equipment operating in a Class I - Division I hazardous area. USATECOM suspended testing of this device and the items were returned to the developer for modifications. A separate test directive for the fuel tester was issued under USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-09 and testing on the fuel tester was suspended pending modification. Testing was continued on the other two fuel testers and a final report was submitted on Project No. 7-3-0239-02 in November 1965. Modified test items were again submitted to this activity in February 1968 and engineering tests subsequently resumed.

b. The engineering test was conducted by installing both capacity test items into closed-loop fuel systems of similar capacity as shown in Figure 2. This system conformed to MIL-F-8901B (Ref. 7, App. V) and utilized equipment which for the most part is standard to the military supply system. The test items were placed in series with a test fuel storage tank, water and solids injection equipment, pumping unit, influent and effluent sampling valves, and a cleanup filter separator. Maximum use was made of glass piping in the test system to allow an actual visual control on the test fuel during operations. Test system piping was arranged so that the fuel could be circulated until the required cleanliness levels of MIL-F-8901B were met, then contaminated at a controlled injection rate with water or solid contaminants, pumped through the test item, and then recleaned by the cleanup filter/separator prior to re-entering the fuel storage tank. The test item performance was evaluated by comparing the item's indicated and recorded fuel contamination levels with laboratory analysis of influent samples, and calculated fuel contamination levels determined from a measured total contaminant injection, length of injection period, and test system flow rate. Maximum use was made of laboratory controls and instrumentation, such as thermocouples and pressure gages.



c. Test fuels utilized in the tests consisted mainly of automotive combat gasoline (MOGAS) and JP-4; however, checks were also made with aviation gasoline (AVGAS-115/145), diesel tuel (DF-1), and combustion ignition turbine engine fuel (CITE). Laboratory analyses for total water were conducted by the Karl Fischer Method according to paragraph 4.6.7.4.2.1 of MIL-F-8901A and total solids analyses on fuel samples were conducted by the Millipore Method in accordance with paragraph 4.6.7.4k, MIL-F-8901A. Water fuel saturation curves were constructed for each batch of test fuel utilized during the test. Each Karl Fischer determination was compared with the saturation curve for the test fuel so as to determine the actual amount of free water in the sample above the allowed total saturation value for that specific temperature at which the sample was taken. Due to inconsistencies in values obtained from the Karl Fischer analysis, greater emphasis was placed on fuel contamination values obtained from direct calculations utilizing actual measurements.

Trans.

1:

d. In addition to formal engineering tests conducted, the item was used extensively to monitor the effluent fuel flow during engineering tests of various filter/separators.

e. The service test was conducted during the period 23 December 1968 through 28 February 1969. The test items were installed in a closed-loop fuel recirculating system at the U.S. Army General Equipment Test Activity Petroleum Equipment Test Facility. The items were operated and maintained by petroleum storage specialists (MOS 76 W). MOGAS was utilized as test fuel. Reliability of the items was ascertained based on 301 hours of operation on the 4-inch fuel tester and 231 hours on the 2-inch fuel tester.

f. Transportability characteristics were determined by results of a paper evaluation as well as actual transport over primary and secondary roads at Fort Lee, Virginia.

g. Human factors were observed throughout the test, and user personnel were questioned regarding ease of operating, handling, installation, and maintenance of the item.

h. Adequacy of the Draft Technical Manual (DTM 10-4930-207-12) was determined during operation and maintenance of the test item in accordance with prescribed instructions and performance of simulated maintenance actions which did not occur normally during tests.

i. Safety characteristics were determined and a list of recommended safety precautions developed.

2.2 INSPECTION (ES)

2.2.1 Objective

To determine the physical characteristics of the test items and to insure that they were in satisfactory operational condition prior to initiation of tests.

2. 2. 2 Method

A thorough inspection and inventory were made of the test items and components received. Any damages and mechanical deficiencies were recorded as well as serial number on each item. Items were weighed, photographed, and examined to insure that they ware of the most practical, simple, and rugged construction.

2.2.3 Results

a. Two 50-gpm and two 400-gpm test items were received for tests. Each item was found to be in a complete and undamaged condition.

b. Each item was disassembled into its major components and the following weights and physical dimensions recorded:

TABLE I

COMPONENT WEIGHTS

Quantity	Item	Weight (lbs) per Item
2	2-inch Pickup Head (including couplings)	19
2	4-inch Pickup Head (including couplings)	23
2	2-inch control valve	15
2	4-inch control valve	55
2	Control and instrument panel (including amplifier, alarm bell, and recorder)	23
4	Cable	÷
4	Conduit (50-feet)	22

c. The test items were received by 1/2-ton truck shipment in a crated condition. The shipping crate was fabricated from 1/4-inch ply-wood material and possessed the following dimensions:

Length	-	32 inches
Width	-	34 inches
Height	-	60 inches

No repair parts or batteries were received with the test items; however, an adequate supply of repair components was on hand at this activity as a result of previous tests conducted on the item (Proj. No. 7-3-0239-02). A list of recommended repair parts and components to be furnished with the test item was determined later in the test and is indicated in paragraph 2.6.

d. The construction, materiel, and design characteristics of the items were examined by engineering and service test supervisory personnel and were judged to be simple, lightweight, compact, self contained, inexpensive, and portable when compared to conventional means of determining water and solids contamination.

e. The fuel tester was found to incorporate materials and provisions to provide maximum resistance to the detrimental effects of fungi, humidity, rain, snow, and extremes of dust and dirt. and to provide a warning device (audio) to alert operating personnel when fuel contamination reaches an unacceptable level; no visual warning device was included.

f. The test item was not found to be of one size though it was of the same type, it did not provide a visual warning device, and it did not have the capability of being used with a separate device to assis: in the detection of unacceptable gum content.

g. Inspection of the items revealed no factors which could increase the vulnerability of the systems in which the fuel testers may be installed.

2.2.4 Analysis

a. The physical characteristics of the fuel tester were found to meet the requirements of the military characteristics with exception of the following:

(1) The item was not of one size, requiring a 2-inch pickup head and 2-inch solenoid valve for 50 gpm flow rates and a 4-inch pickup head and 4-inch solenoid valve for 400 gpm flow rates (essential).

(2) The item did not include a visual warning device to indicate excess levels of contamination (desired).

(3) The item did not have the capability of being used with a separate device to assist in the detection of unacceptable gum content (desired).

b. The pickup head assembly and solenoid valve designed into two separate sizes for 50 and 400 gpm flow rates were judged to be the most practical design due to the wide flow rate range. Test operations conducted showed that the audible alarm was adequate and that a visual alarm was not needed. The requirement to be capable of being used with a separate device to assist in the detection of unacceptable gum content was judged to be impracticable and not within the state of the art at this time.

2.3 PRELIMINARY OPERATIONS (ES)

2.3.1 Objectives

To insure that test personnel and users of the fuel tester were thoroughly and properly oriented in the use of the test item and that they were properly instructed in the method of installation, zeroing, calibration, operation, and maintenance.

2.3.2 Method

a. Each capacity fuel tester vas installed and assembled as directed in the draft technical manual into the engineering test system of comparable capacity shown in Figure 2 utilizing MOGAS test fuel. On-the-job training of engineering test personnel was conducted. The test items were zeroed and calibrated as directed in the draft technical manual. Test fuel was circulated through each test item for an 8-hour period. Water contaminants at a rate of 0.01 percent of rated flow and solid contaminants at a rate of 0.016 pound per gallon of fuel flow were injected for a 2-minute period at the start of each 15-minute flow rate interval. The fuel tester's performance in indicating injected water and solid contaminants and terminating fuel flow when contaminant exceeded the alarm setting was observed during pumping operations.

b. User personnel were instructed as to the purpose of the effluent fuel testers, the method of installation of the items in the simulated test dispensing systems, and how to operate and maintain the items. Instruction consisted of 1 hour of lecture, demonstrations, and on-the-job training.

2.3.3 Results

a. With 1 hour of instruction and on-the-job training during fuel cycling operations, test personnel could adequately install and operate the fuel tester in a flow system.

b. In each instance when contaminants (water or solids) were injected, the fuel tester immediately detected their presence by indications of the dial 12

indicator, chart recorder, and alarm bell. The automatic fuel shutoff valve terminated the fuel flow in each instance approximately 26 seconds after detection of the contaminant by the dial indicator. Due to the large volume of contaminants injected, the limits of the dial indicator were exceeded during each injection causing the indicator and chart recorder to "peg."

2.3.4 Analysis

あると

Personnel can be trained within 1 hour to operate and maintain the effluent fuel tester. Personnel with MOS 76W20 require no additional training and can adequately operate and maintain the test item with only brief on-the-job training.

2.4 TECHNICAL PERFORMANCE (ET)

The following tests were conducted to determine the technical performance of the effluent fuel tester.

2.4.1 Red Iron Oxide Injection Test With MOGAS Test Fuel.

2.4.1.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to indicate the presence of various concentrations of red iron oxide contaminants in MOGAS test fuel.

2.4.1.2 Method. Red iron oxide contaminants ranging from 0.5 mg/l to 11.0 mg/l were injected in various predetermined concentrations into the influent flow stream of MOGAS test fuel. The indications of the fuel tester as recorded on the chart recorder were compared with calculated values based on known actual injections to determine the accuracy of the test item. Twenty injections of red iron oxide were conducted.

2.4.1.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to consistently indicate the presence of iron oxide contaminants with concentrations as low as 0.5 mg/l. Precise accuracy could not be determined due to difference in units between the contaminants injected (mg/l) and the readout of the fuel tester (ppm). Relationships between the different units were established allowing a general indication of accuracy which was judged to be adequate for field determinations.

2.4.1.4 Analysis. Concentrations (mg/l) of iron oxide injected were plotted and superimposed on a chart of contaminant indications (ppm) by the fuel tester. Due to the difference in units, the charts did not coincide, however, an obvious linear relationship existed as shown in Appendix I-A. An injection of 0.5 mg/l was found to yield a fuel tester indication of

approximately 10 ppm. Since 0.5 mg/l is the maximum allowable solid content for fuel allowed by Specification MIL-F-8901B, the item was judged to be capable of indicating unacceptable levels of contamination with iron cuide dust.

11

1

2.4.2 Siliceous Test Dust Injection Test with MOGAS Test Fuel.

2.4.2.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to indicate the presence of various concentrations of siliceous test dust contaminants in MOGAS test fuel.

2.4.2.2 Method. Siliceous test dust contaminants (meeting the specification of MIL-F-8901B) ranging from 2.0 mg/1 to 30.0 mg/1 were injected in various predetermined concentrations into a MOGAS flow stream on the influent side of the test item. The indications of the fuel tester as recorded on the chart recorder were compared with known actual injections to determine the accuracy of the test item. Twenty injections with siliceous test dust were conducted.

2.4.2.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to consistently indicate the presence of siliceous test dust contaminants in the flowstream during each instance of injection except for concentrations below 20 mg/l. As with iron oxide contaminants, the precise accuracy was not determined due to the difference in units; however, a definite relationship between the different units was established. The item lacked sufficient sensitivity to detect siliceous test dust contaminants to the level required by specification MIL-F-8901B (0.5 mg/l).

2.4.2.4 Analysis. Concentrations (mg/l) of siliceous test dust injected were plotted and superimposed on a chart of contaminant indications (ppm) by the fuel tester. The charts did not coincide due to the difference in units, however, definite linear relationship existed (App. I-B) as with iron oxide dust. The minimum concentration of siliceous test dust detectable was 2.0 mg/l which yielded a readout of approximately 1 ppm on the fuel tester. Fuel tester values below 1 ppm can not be read from the dial indicator or chart recorder as graduations are in 2 ppm.

2.4.3 Water Injection Test with MOGAS Test Fuel.

2.4.3.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to indicate the presence of various concentrations of water contaminants.

2.4.3.2 Method. Predetermined volumes of water contaminants were injected into the influent fuel stream. Inject on concentrations ranged from 16 to 84 ppm. The indicated contamination values recorded by the chart recorder were plotted on a curve for comparison with the actual concentration as calculated in ppm from the actual volume injected. Twenty injections were performed.

2.4.3.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to consistently indicate the presence of minute concentrations of water contaminants in the flow stream with a sensitivity sufficient to detect unacceptable fuel exceeding Specification allowables.

2.4.3.4 Analysis

Ü

L

Į,

ł

1

ł.

÷

a. Contamination values indicated by the fuel tester were consistently lower than the calculated values determined from the actual volume injected. Indicated values when plotted on a curve and compared with calculated values almost directly paralleled calculated values however, they were lower by a factor of one-half as shown in Appendix I-C.

b. Due to limitations of the test injection system, the lowest concentration of water contaminants obtainable by injection were 16 ppm which yielded a fuel tester indication of 8 ppm. It therefore appears that any indication by the dial indicator or chart recorder above 2 to 3 ppm readings when properly zeroed would indicate contaminants in excess of the 5 ppm free water allowed by Specification MIL-F-8901B.

c. Since all critical contamination values are on the lower end of the scale, a dial indicator and chart recorder are needed with much smaller dimensions and a much shorter range, approximately 0 to 20 ppm. This would allow the test item indications to be read with much better precision.

2.4.4 Red Iron Oxide Injection Test with JP-4 Test Fuel.

2.4.4.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to detect iron oxide contaminants in JP-4 test fuel.

2.4.4.2 Method. The test item was zeroed with JP-4 test fuel as directed in the draft technical manual and subjected to predetermined concentration of red iron oxide ranging from 0.10 mg/l to 5.0 mg/l contaminant injections in the same manner as indicated in paragraph 2.4.1.2. Twenty injections of red iron oxide were conducted.

2.4.4.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to be capable of consistently indicating the injected contaminants of red iron oxide in a JP-4 flow stream

with concentrations as low as 0.5 mg/l. Precise accuracy could not be determined due to the difference in units between the contaminants injected (mg/l) and the readout of the fuel tester (ppm). Relationships between the different units vere established allowing a general indication of accuracy which was judged to be adequate for field determinations.

2.4.4.4 Analysis. Concentrations of red iron oxide injected were plotted and superimposed on a chart of contaminant indications (ppm) by the fuel tester. Due to the difference in units, the charts did not exactly coincide, however, an obvious linear relationship existed as shown in Appendix I-D in which the two curves almost directly paralleled each other. An injection of 0.1 mg/1 yielded a fuel tester readout increase of 1 ppm. Analysis of the curve in Appendix I-D showed an overall equivalency of 1 mg/1 red iron oxide contaminant in JP-4 test fuel equaling a readout of 10 ppm -- throughout the entire subtest.

2.4.5 Siliceous Test Dust Injection Test with JP-4 Test Fuel.

2.4.5.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to indicate the presence of various concentrations of siliceous test dust contaminants in JP-4 test fuel.

2.4.5.2 Method. Siliceous test dust contaminants (meeting the specification of MIL-F-8901B) were injected in various predetermined concentrations ranging from 5 mg/l to 250 mg/l into the JP-4 flow stream on the influent side of the test item. The indications of the fuel tester as recorded on the chart recorder were compared with known actual injections to determine the accuracy of the test ite.n. Twenty injections with siliceous test dust were conducted.

2.4.5.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to consistently indicate the presence of siliceous test dust contaminants in the flow steam during each instance of injection except below 5.0 mg/l. As with iron oxide the precise accuracy was not determined due to the difference in units, however, a definite relationship between the different units was established. The item lacked sufficient sensitivity to detect siliceous test dust contaminants to the level required by the specification MIL-F-8901B (0.5 mg/l).

.....

4.8

2.4.5.4 Analysis. Concentration. (mg/l) of siliceous test dust injected were plotted and superimposed on a chart of contaminant indications (ppm) by the fuel tester. The charts did not coincide due to a difference in units, however, a definite linear relationship existed (App. I-E), as with iron oxide though not as regularly as with MOGAS test fuel. Differing from siliceous test dust injections with MOGAS test fuel which showed an almost

direct equivalency of 1 mg/l injection equaling 1 ppm fuel tester indication, siliceous test dust injections with JP-4 test fuel showed test item sensitivity to siliceous test dust in a JP-4 environment to have greatly decreased. An injection of 5.0 mg/l resulted in a fuel tester indication of slightly less than 1 ppm. Appendix I-E shows that large quantities of siliceous test dust contaminants were required to yield fuel tester indications with the tester indicating a value which was approximately one-third in ppm of the actual injected concentration in mg/l.

2.4.6 Water Injection Test with JP-4 Test Fuel.

2.4.6.1 Objective. To determine the ability and accuracy of the fuel tester to indicate the presence of various concentrations of water contaminants.

2.4.6.2 Method. Predetermined volumes of water contaminants were injected into the influent flow stream. Injection concentrations ranged from 14 to 160 ppm. The indicated contamination values were plotted on a curve for comparison with the actual concentration as calculated in ppm from the actual volume injected. Twenty injections were performed.

2.4.6.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to consistently indicate the presence of minute concentrations of water contaminants in the flow stream with a sensitivity sufficient to detect unacceptable fuel exceeding specification allowables.

2.4.6.4 Analysis

-

a. Contamination values indicated by the fuel tester were consistently lower than the calculated values determined from the actual volume injected. Indicated values when plotted on a curve and compared with calculated values almost directly paralleled calculated values, however, they were consistently lower by a factor of one-half to one-third as shown in Appendix I-F.

b. Due to limitations of the test injection system the lowest concentration of water contaminants obtainable by injection during the test was 14 ppm which yielded a fuel tester indication of 7 ppm. Judging by this relationship which was essentially constant for injections conducted, a fuel tester indication of 2 to 3 ppm would indicate contaminants exceeding the specification allowed by MIL-F-8901B (5.0 ppm).

2.4.7 Automatic Shutoff Valve Reaction Time Test.

2.4.7.1 Objective. To determine the capability and time required for the fuel tester to terminate fuel flow upon detection of an unacceptable amount of contamination.

2.4.7.2 Method. Utilizing the 4-inch 400-gpm fuel tester, the alarm set was positioned at 20 ppm so that the alarm would activate when the simulator button was depressed. Upon depression of the simulator button, the lapsed time was measured between activation of the alarm until the fuel flow was terminated as determined by observing a flow meter.

2.4.7.3 Results. The fuel tester was found to be capable of completely terminating fuel flow upon detection of a contamination level in excess of the alarm set adjustment, however, a time lapse averaging 26 seconds occurred.

2.4.7.4 Analysis. Lapsed time determinations required for the shutoff valve to terminate fuel flow upon detection of unacceptable contaminants ranged from 26 to 27 seconds at an operating pressure of 32 psi at the rated flow of 400 gpm. Due to the time lapse of 26 seconds required before the fuel flow is completely terminated, it would be necessary to locate the shut-off valve at a distance downstream from the detector head, calculated from the flow velocity, to prevent contaminated fuel from passing the shutoff valve.

2.4.8 Power Supply Evaluation.

2.4.8.1 Objective. To determine if a decrease in strength of the power supply battery results in a subsequent decrease in accuracy.

2.4.8.2 Method. Utilizing a fully charged battery, the fuel tester was subjected to continuous operation. At periodic 30-minute intervals, the simulator button was depressed to simulate contamination and a check made of the battery strength with a DC voltmeter.

2.4.8.3 Results. A decrease in battery strength to the point where a need for recharge was signaled caused no resultant decrease in test item accuracy.

2.4.8.4 Analysis. After 15 hours of operation, battery strength decreased to 11 volts causing the alarm bell to sound and signaling the need for a recharge. The readout indication gave the same reading in ppm upon depression of the simulator button as it did at the start of the test.

2.4.9 Automatic Shutoff Valve Operational Evaluation.

1

1.

....

2.4.9.1 Objective. To determine the capability and reliability of the shutoff value to effectively terminate fuel flow in the presence of repeated injections of unacceptable contaminants.

2.4.9.2 Method. The 400-gpm test item was subjected to fifty water injections and fifty solids injections of 30 ppm and 30 mg/l respectively with the alarm adjustment control set at 10 ppm. A rated flow of 400 gpm at 30 psi was maintained during the test.

2.4.9.3 Results. The shutoff valve successfully and reliably terminated fuel flow for 100 repetitions without failure when the fuel tester was exposed to unacceptable contaminant injection.

2.4.9.4 Analysis. In each instance, fuel flow termination was complete though an average of 26 seconds was required for the value to activate after the contaminated fuel was detected by the fuel tester.

2.4.10 Performance with Various Fuels.

2.4.10.1 Objective. To determine the relative difference in performance of the fuel tester when exposed to various petroleum fuels.

2.4.10.2 Method. The fuel tester was zeroed with jet fuel (JP-4) in a static condition. When depressed, the simulator button yielded a value of 50 ppm. The item was then exposed under static conditions to diesel fuel (DF-1), combustion ignition turbine engine fuel (CITE), motor gasoline (MOGAS), and aviation gasoline (AVCAS), and the zero reading and reading with the simulator button depressed were recorded.

2.4.10.3 Results. Values obtained with the different fuels showed that fuel coloration definitely affects readout, making it imperative that the item be rezeroed whenever fuel types are changed.

2.4.10.4 Analysis. After being zeroed with JP-4, the fuel tester yielded the following values when exposed to the indicated fuels:

	Zero Reading	Simulator Button Depressed
Fuel	ppm	ppm
JP-4	U	50
DF-1	4	60
CITE	8	61
MOGAS	10	55
AVGAS	10	40

2.4.11 Performance Monitoring of Effluent Fuel Stream from Test Filter Separator

. 1

2.4.11.1 Objective. To determine the performance of the test item when installed on the effluent flow stream from a test filter/separator during Specification MIL-F-8901B injection tests.

2.4.11.2 Method

a. The 4-inch and the 2-inch offluent fuel testers were installed on the effluent side of a 350-and 100-gpm test filter separator respectively and used to monitor flow during the series of contaminant injection tests described in Specification MIL-F-8901B.

b. Each item was utilized for a total of 250 hours will flow rates, pressures, fuel temperatures, fuel tester indications, and laboratory analyses for solids and water being periodically recorded.

2.4.11.3 Results

a. The fuel tester was found to be very useful in monitoring the performance of the filter/separator being tested as it provided an instantaneous indication when contaminants were passed even though it did not differentiate between water or solid contamination. The item also furnished a permanent chart recording of contamination and shut off the flow stream automatically at the desired alarm set position.

b. It became evident that an additional power source battery was needed to maintain operation on an 8-hour per day basis.

c. It was also found that a AC-DC converter would greatly simplify fuel tester operations in the field where AC current is available.

d. Repeated problems experienced with the chart recorder evidenced the need for a more durable chart recorder to withstand field handling.

e. It was found that a protective carrying case is needed to protest the amplifier, alarm bell, and chart recorder components from damage and to allow for easy hand carrying.

2.4.11.4 Analysis

a. During the tests of the filter/separator, frequent problems were encountered with faulty filter/coalescer elements. The effluent fuel

tester proved extremely useful in detecting these failures long before a failure was made evident by visual means or laboratory analysis. Subject failures characteristically occurred with an initial very slight increase of approximately 2 ppm which was immediately detected by the fuel tester. As the failure worsened the effluent contamination increased, being verified by laboratory analysis which required several hours, and finally by visual means. In each instance the filter/coalescer elements were removed, examined, and found to have ruptured end caps which had allowed contamination to pass. Without the fuel tester, this failure would probably have gone undetected until it increased to a point where it could be detected by visual means.

b. When operated on a continuous 8-hour per day basis it was found that the power supply battery required a recharge after 1 to 2 days operation. This need for recharge was signaled by a continuous ringing of the alarm bell. Since several hours are required for a battery recharge, the fuel tester cannot be operated. A second battery is therefore needed to allow continuous operation.

c. It also became evident that if an AC-DC converter had been provided with the fuel tester, the AC current available in the area could have been utilized eliminating the need for batteries and greatly simplifying the operation. In most non-mobile type installations in the field, AC current is available, and for mobile type installation batteries will be required.

d. Frequent problems with the chart recorder furnished with the test items were experienced requiring frequent replacement. The chart recorder was very delicate and sensitive to handling. A more durable component to withstand field handling is required.

e. Test operations showed the amplifier component, with alarm bell and chart records, to be very bulky, difficult to handle, and subject to damage as presently mounted on the plywood frame. These three components should be mounted in a lightweight protective carrying case.

2.5 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (ST)

2.5.1 Objective

- -

To determine through normal operations by users in standard POL distribution and dispensing systems, the capability of the test items to reliably and accurately detect and register the presence of ha, mull contaminants; and to determine the capability of the test items to be easily and readily installed on or attached to standard or proposed POL distribution and dispensing systems.

2.5.2 Method

a. The fuel testers (2- and 4-inch) were initially installed and operated in a closed-loop fuel recirculating system at the USAGETA Petroleum Equipment Test Facility, Fort Lee, Virginia. Operations consisted of circulating MOGAS through the fuel testers which were utilized on the effluent side of a 600-gpm filter/separator. Contaminated conditions were simulated hourly by depressing the simulator button on the 2-inch and 4-inch pickup heads.

b. The test items were subsequently taken to the Petroleum Training Area, U. S. Army Quartermaster Petroleum School, Fort Lee, where students installed them in a fuel system supply point after being instructed in installation and operation procedures.

c. The 2- and 4-inch items were then attached to 1, 200- and 5, 000-gallon tankers respectively. Operations consisted of driving the tankers over a specified distance and then cycling fuel through the fuel testers.

d. Observations were made regarding the durability, maintainability, and reliability of the test items as well as the capability of the test items to be easily and readily installed and committed to use, including time and men involved. The compatibility of the test items with associated equipment was observed and evaluated. The ability of user personnel to operate the items efficiently was recorded and assessed.

2.5.3 Results

a. Operations on the test items (2- and 4-inch) were similiar. The 4-inch fuel tester was operated for 301 hours in the closed loop recirculating system. During this time, contaminants were simulated 396 times and fuel flow was terminated each time without failure. The battery utilized as the energy source for the item was replaced and recharged 17 times or roughly after every 17 hours of operation. The 2inch item was operated for 231 hours during which time contaminants were simulated 324 times. The item failed to terminate fuel flow 2 times out of the 324 times contaminants were simulated. The battery utilized with the 2-inch item was replaced and recharged 12 times or roughly after every 19 hours of operation.

b. The fuel testers were installed, operated, and maintained by petroleum storage specialists (MOS 76W). One hour of instruction, including demonstrations and on-the-job training, was required for the operator personnel to effectively utilize the test items.

22
c. Time required to install the 2-inch item on a 1, 200-gallon tanker was approximately 15 minutes (Figure 3). The time required to install the 4-inch fuel tester in a 5,000-gallon tanker was one-half hour. The tanker trucks with the installed fuel testers were driven a specified distance of 1.4 miles over rough roads and terrain a total of 20 times. At the end of each run, contaminated conditions were simulated three times while fuel was being cycled. Both items functioned properly each time contaminants were simulated.

d. The following failures occurred during service test operations at Fort Lee:

(1) The recorder willized with the 2-inch fuel tester malfunctioned after 231 hours (Ref. EPR L? A similar malfunction of the recorder utilized with the 4-inch item also occurred.

(2) After 301 hours of testing, the 4-inch fuel tester could not be correctly zeroed due to a short in the system and the deteriorated accuracy of the photocell (Ref. EPR L7-5).

(3) After 136 hours of operation, the 2-inch item failed to shut down fuel flow when contaminated conditions were simulated due to a failure of the solenoid which activates the shutoff valve.

2.5.4 Analysis

Frend Party

. .

. .

. . .

÷ -

• -

a. The continuous operation of the test items and the resulting necessity that the batteries utilized as the energy source must be recharged dictates the need for two batteries to be supplied with each fuel tester rather than the one which is now supplied. Availability of a battery charger is also necessary so that continuous operation of the fuel testers can be assured. The test items should also be equipped with an AC-DC converter so that other available sources of electricity could be utilized in lieu of the batteries.

b. Installation and maintenance of the fuel testers were easily accomplished although extensive manual changes are necessary to facilitate these operations. The test items were easy to handle, move, assemble, and disassemble. Handling and movement of the fuel testers could be enhanced by replacing the rigid cable conduit with an explosion-proof flexible cable which could be rolled up into a more compact configuration. Operator personnel were able to understand the operation of the items and no additional skills or specialized training requirements for MOS qualified personnel were generated.



Figure 3. 2-inch fuel tester installed on a 1, 200-gallon tanker truck.

c. The installation of the test items on the tank trucks was relatively easy to accomplish. The shutoff valve was not utilized in these operations due to the distance between the pickup head and the valve that is required to compensate for the rate of flow and the time lag that exists between the detection of contaminants and the activation and complete closing of the shutoff valve. Modifications to the tankers and/or the fuel testers would be necessary to make the use of the fuel testers on the trucks entirely adequate.

d. The chart recorders furnished with the test items were exceptionally sensitive and not sufficiently rugged to withstand field service conditions. The other components were adequate and displayed a high degree of compatibility with each other and with associated equipment, although some modifications are necessary when used with tanker trucks as stated.

2.6 MAINTAINABILITY AND RELIABILITY EVALUATION (ST)

2.6.1 Objective

Π

Γ

1.

÷.,

1

4.2

- --

. .

- -

• .

÷ .

ι.

....

5

To determine whether the test item meets maintainability and reliability requirements for the service intended.

2.6.2 Method

a. One 2-inch 50-gpm and one 4-inch 400-gpm fuel tester was used and maintained under service type test conditions in a TOE environment at Fort Lee. The test items operated 24 hours per day until 532 hours were actumulated.

b. The test items were technically inspected before and after the service test.

c. Accumulated records of unscheduled and simulated maintenance and repair parts usage and service life data were summarized and evaluated. (Scheduled maintenance, direct support, and general support maintenancewere not prescribed or required because of the nature of the test item) Computations were made to determine maintainability and reliability indicators as required by USATECOM Regulation 750-15. Tables II and III show the definitions and equations used to compute those indicators.

d. The unscheduled and simulated maintenance actions were performed by 63K40 and 76W20 MOS personnel from USAGETA, utilizing the basic issue items and common tools of the general mechanics tool set and organizational No. 2 common tool set, FSN 4910-754-0650.

TABLE II

MAINTAINABILITY, RELIABILITY, AND AVAILABILITY SYMBOLS

The symbols listed below will be used as variables in the computations in Table III.

R _L (x; 1-&)	= The lower confidence limit on reliability
χ^2 1-a, 2r/2	Chi-square value for a confidence level of 100 (1-4) % and 2r/2 degrees of freedom
x	Mission time
1 - d	= Confidence coefficient
MTBF	= Mean time between failures
MDT	= Mean downtime
MTTR	= Mean time to repair (failures)
м	Mean active maintenance downtime
MTBM	= Mean time between maintenance
MR	= Maintenance ratio
Ai	= Inherent Availability
Aa	= Achieved Availability
Ao	= Operational Availability
Ъ	= Operating time (hours, miles, etc.)
с	= Active maintenance man-hours (scheduled and unscheduled)
d	= Active maintenance clock hours (scheduled and unscheduled)
f	= Unscheduled active maintenance clock hours
g	 Downtime in hours (include active and inactive maintenance time for both scheduled and unscheduled maintenance actions)
r	= Number of failures
8	Number of maintenance layovers (include both scheduled and unscheduled maintenance actions)
p	= Active maintenance man-hours to correct failures
q	= Active maintenance clock hours to correct failures
26	

TABLE III

MAINTAINABILITY, RELIABILITY, AND AVAILABILITY COMPUTATIONS

		2-inch	4-inch	SAMPLE
Mission Time (x)	-	15	15	15
Confidence Level (1-4)	#	0,90	0.90	0.90
No. of Failures (r)	-	0	1	1
Operating Time (b)	-	231.0	301.0	532.0
Maintenance Man-hours (c)	=	0.6	8.1	8.7
Maintenance Clock hours (d)	=	0,6	10.1	10.7
Unscheduled Maintenance Clock hours (f)		0,6	10.1	10.7
Downtime (g)	-	0,6	10.1	10.7
No. of Maintenance Layovers (s)		2	2	4
Maintenance Man-hours (p)		0	8.0	8,0
Maintenance Clock hours (q)	-	0	10.0	10.0
COMPUTATIONS:				
MDT = (g/s)	-	0.3	5,05	2.67
MTBF=(b/r)	=	*	301	532 🔹
$\overline{\mathbf{M}} = (\mathbf{d}/\mathbf{s})$	-	0.3	5.05	2.67
MTTR (man-hours) = (p/r)	-	*	8.0	8,0
MTTR (clock hours) = (q/r)	-	*	10.0	10.0
MTBM = (b/s)	-	115.5	150.5	133.0
MR = (c/b)		0.0025	0.0269	0.0163
A _i = (MTBF/(MTBF+MTTR (clock hours)))	4	1.000	0.9678	0.9815
$A_a = (MTBM/(MTBM + \overline{M}))$		0.9974	0. 96 7 5	0, 9803
Ao =(MTBM/(MTBM+MDT))	*	0. 9974	0.9675	0.9803
RELIABILITY; $R_{L}(x, 1-4) = \exp\left(-\frac{x\chi}{2}\right)$	2	1-46, 2:42 26	- 90 per	cent

*Indeterminable due to division by zero.

e. Draft Technical Manual 10-4930-207-12 furnished with the test item was used by operators and organizational maintenance personnel for all maintenance actions and was evaluated for completeness, accuracy, simplicity, and clarity.

2.6.3 Results

a. Prior to beginning the service test, the maintenance test package (App. IV-C) was verified and the test items were technically inspected and repaired as necessary to return them to a satisfactory condition.

b. Daily maintenance, consisting of cleaning and visual inspections for leaks and loose wiring connections, required approximately 0.1 hour each operating shift. Slight leakage occurred at the inlet and outlet threads of the pickup heads, and temporary repair was made with a sealing compound. Daily maintenance time is not included in maintenance and reliability computations.

e à

÷ .

...

. .

c. The solenoid-operated "three-way valve" malfunctioned (EPR L7-1) at 136 test hours and was replaced (App. IV-B).

d. The zero test and adjustment of the indicating meter could not be accomplished as indicated in DTM 10-4930-207-12 because the instructions did not apply to the configuration of the item tested (EPR L7-3) and because a special tool, a short angle hexagon wrench for socket head capscrews ("Allen wrench") was not provided (EPR L7-2). Improvised methods were used to remove the screws from the lamp holder assembly, and the adjustments were accomplished (App. IV-B).

e. The chart recorder (Par. No. 14869, Model 88) malfunctioned on each test item (EPR L7-4), and they were replaced (App. IV-B).

f. Simulated maintenance performed at 301 hours on the 4-inch fuel tester revealed it could not be calibrated. All major components were replaced in an effort to isolate the cause. Short circuits and a defective photocell were finally diagnosed as the causes of the malfunction. The photocell and the window assembly were replaced, the bare wires in the adapter and tube assembly were repaired, and the item was calibrated satisfactorily (EFR L7-5).

g. Removal of the photocell during simulated maintenance revealed changes in the configuration when compared with Figure D-1, Page D-21 of the Technical Manual; and the instructions in Figure 3-1, Page 3-4a were inadequate (EPR L7-6). The component could not be replaced without possible damage.

h. Maintainability of the fuel tester is considered inadequate (Par. 2.5 through 2.11 of App. III) based on a comparison of the test results with the criteria stated in paragraph 2.2b of the test plan.

i. The test item met the reliability requirements (Tables II and III; and App. IV-A).

j. One special tool was required to remove the lamp holder assembly as stated in paragraph d. A hexagon wrench did not fit in the space allowed for the removal and installation of the socket head capscrews, and improvised tools were used to remove the capscrews.

k. Repair parts used in the conduct of the test are shown in Appendix IV-B. These parts were obtained by substitution from like-type items available to the test team. Many parts were not assigned part numbers (EPR L7-7) in the technical manual.

1. DTM 10-4930-207-12 was inadequate for troubleshooting the test item and for replacing the photocell (EPR L7-7).

2.6.4 Analysis

1

a. The maintenance test package is considered inadequate because DTM 10-4930-207-12 does not contain up-to-date illustrations, parts data, and satisfactory instructions (EPR L7-7). The inspection and service upon receipt were satisfactory.

b. Daily maintenance is not excessive and is simple and adequate. The leakage at the inlet and outlets of the pickup head is attributed to quality control of the threads on the pickup head. The 3/4-inch taper per foot normally associated with pipethreads may not be precise due to manufacturing methods (lathe cut versus die cut).

c. Malfunction of the solenoid-operated 3-way valve (EPR L7-1) is classified as a shortcoming because the mission could be completed with the operator manually closing the proper valve upon signal from the alarm which indicates contaminated fuel. Troubleshooting instructions to identify the above malfunction are inadequate, and instructions developed during the test were submitted on DA Form 1598. Cause of the malfunction is attributed to internal corrosion of the solenoid piston. The corrosion was observed during disassembly and inspection of the solenoid, and it was probably due to storage for 4 years after initial use.

d. Instructions pertaining to the present test item configuration were requested from the developing agency; and recommendations were

submitted concerning the use of hexagon head capscrews (Item 26, Figure D-1 of the technical manual) instead of the socket head capscrews, or the inclusion of a special short angle hexagon wrench. Improvised methods used to remove the lamp holder assembly are not satisfactory.

e. The fuel tester recorder is a very sensitive component and appears to be a high mortality item. Repair of the item is programmed at organizational level. Mechanics with MOS 63K40 were unable to repair the item, and it is recommended that it be repaired at general support or depot level.

f. The malfunction of the photocell is classified a failure because the fuel tester could not be accurately calibrated and would operate below an acceptable level for reliable monitoring of contamination. Cause of malfunction is attributed to a defective photocell and a short circuit.

g. Photocell removal problems resulted from a design change and inadequate maintenance instructions. The present photocell configuration unites the photocell and the adapter into a single component which should be replaced as a component (EPR L7-6).

h. Maintainability of the fuel tester is considered inadequate because the technical manual instructions, illustrations, and parts data are not satisfactory for field use until updated to correspond to the item to be issued.

i. The test item indicated 90-percent reliability at a 90-percent lower confidence level. This was based on 532 test hours, a 15-hour mission duration, and one failure.

j. A special tool will not be required to remove the lamp holder assembly if hexagon head capscrews are used in the component as illustrated (Item 26, Figure D-1, Page D-21, DTM 10-4930-207-12).

k. The repair parts used indicate a high degree of interchangeability with older items. The following additional repair parts are recommended for the prescribed load allowance:

1 each Chart Recorder (14869) Model 88

8 each Rolls, Chart, Recording

2 each Diaphrams for individual size control valves

1. DTM 10-4930-207-12 requires major revision and updating to permit satisfactory performance of all authorized maintenance.

2.7 HUMAN FACTORS EVALUATION (ES)

2.7.1 Objective

U

To observe the effectiveness of the man-item relationship during operational use and to assess the degree of ease, simplicity, and effort in operating, installing, and servicing the items in normal use.

2.7.2 Method

Throughout all testing, observations were made and recorded concerning the degree of design simplicity inherent in the test items relative to users' ability to easily and readily handle, install, operate, and maintain the items.

2.7.3 Results

a. Observations of test teams revealed no factors that caused any difficulty in the ability of operators to install and maintain the test items although extensive changes in and additions to the Draft Technical Manual are required to facilitate these operations.

b. Transportation and handling of the test items were easily accomplished due to their relative light weight and compactness, with exception of the amplifier component, alarm bell, and chart recorder which should be mounted in a protective carrying case as indicated in paragraph 2.4.11.3e due to its bulkiness and sensitivity to damage as presently mounted.

c. The test items are easy to operate, assemble, and disassemble, requiring not more than 1 hour of orientation and training for the operators to be able to utilize them in a safe and sufficient manner.

2.7.4 Analysis

The man-item relationship is effective with regard to user personnel, however, a protective carrying case is needed for the amplifier, alarm bell, and chart recorder components for easier hand carrying.

2.8 VALUE ANALYSIS (ES)

2.8.1 Objective

To determine if the test items have any unnecessary, costly, or nice-to-have features which might be eliminated or redesigned to reduce cost.

2.8.2 Method

Throughout the conduct of the test, observations were made and users were questioned concerning features which could be eliminated or modified without compromising the performance, reliability, durability, or safety of the test items.

2.8.3 Results

Based on observations by engineering and service test teams and questions of users, the test items have no unnecessary, costly, or nice-to-have features.

2.8.4 Analysis

The test items are adequate with regard to cost awareness in design and manufacture.

2.9 SAFETY EVALUATION (ES)

2.9.1 Objective

To determine and confirm the safety characteristics of the test item.

: . . .

2.9.2 Method

32

During the engineering test period, observations were made for detecting any condition which might present a safety hazard, to determine the cause, and to note steps taken to alleviate the hazard encountered. A safety release was issued as a result of engineering tests in accordance with USATECOM Regulation 386-6 prior to initiation of service tests. Service tests adhered to sefety procedures developed during the engineering test phase and embodied in the safety release. Confirmation of the safety characteristics was in accordance with USATECOM Regulation 385-7.

2.9.3 Results

ż.

• 1

.

During testing, it was determined that the following precautions should be taken to enhance the safety of the test item.

a. Preasure test the pickup heads of the fuel testers to 125 psi before installation to insure that they are leakproof and glass lenses are completely sealed.

b. Position the amplifier alarm assembly outside the hazardcus area at least 25 feet from the pickup head and in an area having good vapor drainage away from the amplifier and battery since these components are not explosion proof.

c. Position the power supply battery an additional 25 feet from the amplifier component, or a minimum of 50 feet from the pickup head, also well away from vapor drainage.

d. Utilise sparkproof tools when working with the items.

e. Insure all explosion-proof conduit connections are completely sealed.

f. Insure that power supply is off whenever connecting or disconnecting any of the components in the hazardous areas.

g. Insure that the pickup head assembly has metal-()-metal contact for bonding with the pipeline in which it is installed.

2.9.4 Analysis

The fuel testers are capable of being operated without hazard to operator personnel provided that the recommended precautions listed in paragraph 2.9.3 as well as other normal safety procedures for operating similar POL equipment are observed. The draft technical manual should emphase a safety procedures.

SECTION 3. APPENDICES

APPENDIX I - TEST DATA

L

5

ί.

į,

1

11

....

د . .

. .

• •

. . .

. .

A MCGAS Red Iron Oxide Injections

B MOGAS Siliceous Test Dust

C MOGAS Water Injections

D JP-4 Red Iron Oxide Injections

E JP-4 Silicoous Test Dust Injections

F JP-4 Water injections

APPENDIX II - FINDINGS

APPENDIX III - DEFICIENCIES AND SHORTCOMINGS

APPENDIX IV - MAINTENANCE EVALUATIONS

A Maintenance and Reliability Analysis Chart

B Parts Analysis Chart

G Mainterance Package Literature Chart

D Recommended Changes to Draft Technical Manual

AF PENDIX V - REFERENCES

APPENDIX VI - DISTRIBUTION LIST



÷.

4 **-**

. .

ċ.



I - A

MOGAS-SILICEOUS TEST DUST INJECTIONS



38

I-B

I-B

Į.



-----FUEL TESTER ppm EXTRAPOLATION

I-C

- 39

[]

I-D -

40

I - D

JP 4-SILICEOUS TEST DUST INJECTIONS

111

Ĩ

(Providence of

Contraction of the second



----- FUEL TESTER ppm

к....

I-E



I-F



22			NOL	
MC . Beference	Military Characteristics Requirement	Met	Met	Paragraph References
Vereiere	The fiel rester shall be reliable, simple		×	Not sufficiently accurate
rar. c.a.	to operate, and sufficiently accurate to register presence of injurious amounts of			to register presence of in jurious amount of siliceo
	contamination.			rest dust contamination Par. 2.4.2, 2.4.5.
Per. 8.a(2)	The fuel tester shall automatically and continuously detect contamination particles and indicate that the water content does not exceed unacceptable amounts specified by the current military specification for filter/separators.		×	Par. 2.4.2, 4.4.5.
2er. 8.a(3)	The fuel tester shall provide a warning device to alert operating personnel when fuel contamination reaches an unacceptable level and/or when any free water is	×		Par. 2.2
	present.		•	
Par. 8.b(l)	A vigual warning device shall be in- corporated to permit operating personnel to determine whether filtering and coalescing elements of the filter/ separators require replacement.		×	Visual warning device not included, however audible signal provided which pro adequate during test oper tions Par. 2.2.
Par. 8.b(2)	The fuel tester shall automatically terminate the flow of fuel when the presence of an intolerable amount of contamination is registered.	×		Par. 2.3, 2.4.7, 2.5
Par. 8.b(3)	The fuel tester shall be capable of being used with a separate device to assist in the detection of unacceptable gum content, au specified by applicable military specifications.		×	Requirement considered u realistic and not within present state-of-the-art

.

in the second second

43

1

-

			r rafaxtaun Kelerences
Par. 9.æ(l)	The fuel tester shall be self-contained, capable of being emplaced in, or attached to, all standard and proposed military fuel-dispensing equipment.	×	Par. 2.1, 2.4.11, 2.5,
Par. 9.a(2)	The fuel tester shall be compatible with various rates of flow of all standard and proposed military fuel-dispensing equip- ment.	×	Par. 2.1, 2.4.11, 2.5.
Per. 9.a(3)	The fuel tester shall be compact, incx- pensive, and of one type and size.	X	Not of one size two furnished however found
Far. 9.b.	Weight and size of the fuel tester shall be kept to the minimum commensurate with the state-of-the-art at the time of development.	*	pe necessary during tea Par. 2.2. Par. 2.2.
P&r. 9.c(l)	The fuel tester shall be capable of transportation by rail, ship, motor vehicle, and aircraft (including external helicopter loading) with a minimum of disassembly or preparation.	×	Transportability tests conducted however judge suitable to meet requin ment provided item is a tely packaged Par. 1.44
Par. 9.c(2)	The fuc! tester shall le capable of being delivered in Phase II of airborne operations with a minimum of packaging and protective materials.	×	Transportability tests conducted however judge suitabie to meet requir ment provided item is a
Par. J.d(1)	The fuel tester shall be sufficiently rugged to withstand the vibrations and shock encountered in handling and transportation in the field without developing leaks and other malfunctions.	×	quatery packaged for Exception-chart records which requires replaced with a more durable tyr Par. 2.5.4, 2.6.4.
Par. 9.d(2)	The fuel tester whall provide a high degree of functional collability.	· بو	App. IV-A, Par. 2.4.9,

APPENDIX II. FINDINGS

SM		Kot	Not	Remarks and Paracranh References
Reference	Military Characteristics Requirement	LIG F	HEL	1414414414141414141414
Par. 9.e.	The vulnerability of the fuel tester shall not exceed that of any component of the associated fuel-dispensing equipment.	£ K		Par. 2.2.
Par. 9.f(l)	The fuel tester shall be designed for use under field conditions and shall have all-weather capability to include extreme hot and cold climates. It shall conform insorar as practicable to the requirements of paragraph 7, AR 705-15, 14 August 1957.	X		Tested under intermediate climatic conditions raug- ing from +10°F to 100°F. Environmental tests con- ducted under separate tasks Par. 2.2, 2.4, 2.5.
Par. 9.f(2)	The fuel tester shall incorporate materials and provisions that provide maximum resistance to the detrimental effects of fungi, humidity, rain, snow, and extremes of dust and dirt.	×		Par. 2.2.

APPENDIX II. FINDINGS

II-3

		Remarks	See Para. 2.2.4.	See Para. 2.4.2, 2.4.5.		kemarks	Sae Para. 2.2.4. Ic	See Fara. 2.2.4.	See Para. 2.4.11, 2.5.4.
III. DEFICIENCIES AND SHORTCOMINCS	1. DEFICIENCIES	Suggested Corrective Action	The requirement for one size item should be deleted and allow two sizes due to the wide flow rate range.	The sensitivity of the test item should be improved and a narrower range dial indicator and chart recordor provided with rmaller divisions to increase accuracy in reading.	2. SHORTCOMINGS	Suggested Corrective Action	This requirement should be deleted from the MC's as it is not considered realisti and not within the state-of-the-art at the present.	This requirement should be deleted from the MC's. The audible alarm furnished with the test items proved adequate during that operations.	Furnish two power supply batteries with each fuel tester.
APPENDIX		Deficiency	<pre>1.1 The test item was not of cne size as required - two sizes fur- nished.</pre>	1.2 The test item would not detect unacceptable amounts of AC Test Dust contaminant.		Shor tcoming	2.1 The fuel tester was not capable of being used with a separate device to assist in detection of unaccept- able gum content.	2.2 The test item did not include a visual warning device to permit operating personnel to determine whether filter coalescing elements of the filter/separator require replacement.	2.3 A second power supply battery was required to allow uninterrupted operations during frequent required recharging.
						111	-1		

47

.

an antifacture agenerated

(Same

an an an a

terrentiare mé

	Remarks	See Para. 1.4.c (3),2.4.2.4.	EFR L7-1. Malfunction is attributed to internal corrosion of the solenoid piston resulting from 4 years storage following previous use and from lack of cor- rective protection (Par. 2.6.3c).	EFR L7-2. Improvised tools used to remove the hollow head screws were considered unsatisfactory (Par. 2.6.3j).	RFR L7-3 and paragraph 2.6.3e).	EFR L7-4. Malfunction occurred at 231 and 301 hours respectively. Repair of the recorder is recomminded to depot level (Far. 2.6.3e).	
APPENDIX III APPENDIX	<u>Suggested Corrective Action</u>	A dial indicator and chart recorder with smailer scale divisions and a total range of 0-20 ppm is needed to increase accuracy in reading at the critical lower extremes.	Provide internal protection against corrosion.	Provide hexagon head capscrews with the component as illustrated in the D.T.M. 10-4930-207-12.	Provide instructions applicable to the presunt configuration.	Provide a more durable chart recorder.	
	Shor tcoming	2.4 The dial fudicator and chart recorder furnished could not be read with the required accuracy as the scale divisions were too large (2 ppm) and the total range (0-100 ppm) unnecessarily wide.	2.5 The 3-way valve (solenoid operated) malfunctioned during simulation of contaminated cond.tions.	2.6 The socket head capscrews item #25 on the lamp holder were inscressable with standard hexagon (Allen) wrenches in the mechanic's tool set and the organizational #2 roomson tool set FSN 5910-754-0650.	2.7 Instructions in the D.T.M. 10-4930-20-7-12 for zero adjustment of the indicating meter were not applicable to the present configura- tion of the test item and will cause demage to the lemp holder assembly wiring.	2.8 Two chart recorders malfunctioned.	
48		•		111-2			

.

- for contract

1. 1. 3.

.....

a sub-sector and the sector of the sector of

12
ġ
R
ò
-
Ř
E
100

the 4-fach fuel tester could not br 2.9 During simulated muintenance calibrated.

adequate instructions in the maintethe photocell could not be replaced narge manuel D.T.M. 10-4930-207-12. 2.10 During simulated maintenance because of design change and in2.11 The instructions are inadequate in D.T.M. 10-4930-207-12 and ce tait performed without potential damage maintenance actions could not be to the test item and excessive

troubleshooting was required to

111-3

correct noncalibracion (EPR L7-5).

Suggested Corrective Action

APPENDIX III

Provide adequate instruction for troubleshooting the test item.

to design of the test item as it Update instructions to conform will be issued. Institute revision of the operator and organizational maintenance marual.

CORRECTED DE. . IENCIES AND SHORTCOMINGS

Corrective Action

Defictency/Shortcoming

None.

None.

None.

49

Renarks

EPR L7-6 and paragraph 2.6.33. the photocell outlet tubing uno repairing bars wires in returned the fuel tester to Replacement of the photocell and window assembly operation. (Par. 2.6.3f) Failure: EPR L7-5.

EPR L7-7 and paragraph 2.6.3.1.

Remarks

PRECEDING PAGE BLANK-NOT FILMED

APPENDIX IV. MAINTENANCE EVALUATION

APPENDIX IV-A

MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART

INSTRUCTION SHEET - DESCRIPTION

COLUMN

- 1. Functional group number as indicated in the Maintenance Allocation Chart (ref AR 310-3) of the assembly or subassembly. The sequence number of the maintenance operation is in parenthesis below the group number.
- 2. Component and related operations as indicated in the Maintenance Allocation Chart. Operations assigned to depot level maintenance are not shown.
- 3. Maintenance Level, Prescribed. The maintenance level prescribed by the Maintenance Allocation Chart or the parts manual, whichever is appropriate, is indicated using the following code: C - Operator/Crew; O - Organizational; F - Direct Support; and H - General Support.
- Maintenance Level, Recommended. Use the code letters, C,
 O, F or H to indicate the level of maintenance recommended by the test agency.
- 5. TM Instructions, Adequate. An X in this column indicates the TM instructions covering this maintenance action are adequate.
- TM Instructions, Inadequate. When the TM instructions are considered inadequate, insert the test agency reference number used on the DA Form 1598.
- 7. Active Maintenance Time. Meashours and clock hours required for the maintenance operation to the nearest tenth of an hour. If the operation was not actually performed but was reviewed, the estimated active maintenance time is indicated by using the prefix E. (Unusual differences in maintenance times for the same operation should be explained in the body of the test report.)
- 8. Life. The number of operational hours (essential) and miles, events, etc., as required in the test plan, accumulated during the test prior to the occurrence of the malfunction or scheduled service. (Under the life figure enter in parenthesis the sequence number for which that particular operation was last performed followed by the appropriate life unit; i.e. M, H, etc.) "S" will be placed in this column if the operation was performed on a sampling basis and not because of an actual failure.

MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART

INSTRUCTION SHEET (Cont'd)

COLUMN

- 9. Reason Performed. The symbol "Unscd" will be shown in this column if this operation was performed as a result of unscheduled maintenance. If the operation was performed and recorded as a required portion of a scheduled maintenance service, the symbol "Scd" will be used. If the operation was performed only to verify procedure and tool requirements, not to correct a malfunction, the symbol "Sim" will be used.
- 10. Remarks. If the operation was not performed at a result of using the sampling technique authorized by AR 750-6, one of the following remarks will be entered:
 - a. Reviewed not performed.
 - b. Neither reviewed nor performed due to (No. TM's) or (insufficient service test time).
 - c. Other as appropriate.

If an EPR is related to the operation, the EPR reference number will be shown. When the operation was performed to correct a failure as defined in this regulation, it will be indicated by the word "Failure" in this column.

5Z

MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART

		T			E		1 <u>112 17 17</u>		**				
REMARKS		01	During initial 7.1. after Eng. Test and before service test	2-inch 50 GPM teur item. EPR L7-1.	2-inch 50 GPM iten EPR L-7-4	EPR L-7-5 Failurc	4-inch totamitor EPR not submitted	EPR L7-5.	EPR L7-5,	EPR L7-5.	2 inch item.	4 inch item.	
REASON		0	unsch	unsch	unsch	unsch	ursch	unsch	unsch	unsch	Sch.	Sch.	
LIFE H-HOURS		8	0	136	231	301*	301	301*	301*	301 *	*	*.	
VE NANCE	MAN- HOURS		0° 3**	0°2	0.1	3.0	1.0	*	*	*	0.544	0. 54 4	
ACTI	CLOCK HOURS	7	344	0.5	C.1	10.0	۲ . 0	*	*	*	0.5**	0.544	on ations.
M CTIONS	INADE-	\$		×		×		×	×	×			alibrati y comput
TI	ADE- OUATE	5	×		×		×				×	×	head c
LEVEL /CREW N CT RAL	RECOM	•	O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	of pickup ed in rel
MAINT C-OPER 0-ORGZ F-01RE(H-GENE	PRE- SCRIBED	۶D	C	0	0	0	0	n	0	0	0	0	e result ot includ
COMPONENT AND RELATED	OPERATIONS	2	Simulator Repaired	Solenoid Replaced	no conter Replaced	Fick up head Repaired	Recorder Replaced	Window Assembly Replaced	Photo cell Replaced	Adapter Replaced	Pinel T.I.	Time T.T.	cement was the enance time no
GROUF NO.		-	8	5	Ci	8-3	013	<u>}</u>	0034	8 10		::/ x	TRepla

-| 53

	RE M ARKS	10									Instructions inadequate (EFA L7-3)		
S CHART	REASON	0		Sim	Stm	Star	Sim				Sîm	Sim	
ANALYSI	LIFE H-HOURS M-MILES	30		N/A	N/A	N/N							
BILITY	IVE ENANCE KE	MAN- HOURS		0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1				0.4	0.1	
RELIA	ACT	XOUCK HOUCK		0.1	0.1	0.1	c.1				0.4	0,1	
A ND SIM	M ICTIOUS	INADE- QUATE 6									×		•
ANCE	T	ADE- QUATE		×	×	×	×					×	
INTEN	LEVEL /CREW N RAL	RECOM-		U	U	0	0				0	0	
MA	MAINT C-OPER C-OPER F-DIREC	PRE- SCRIBED 3		U	U	0	0				0	0	
	COMPONENT AND RELATED	OPERATIONS	Battery	Battery Service	Inspect	Test	Replace	Electrical Equipment	Automatic Control Device	Valve, 3-vay. Solenoid	Operated Teat	Replace	
	GROUP NO.	-	8	0612				42	4206				

IV-A-4

54

		R E M A R KS		01							Reviewed only.			Not applicable to the component.
S CHART		REASON		6	S1m	Sim	Sim	Sim	Sim	Sim		E. S.	Sim	N/A
ANALYSIS		LIFE H-HJURS		8										
פורודץ		IVE ENANCE AE	MAN- HOURS		0.1	0.5	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.8	B1.0	0.1	0.3	N/A
RELIAS	MULATED	ACT MAINT	CLOCK FIOURS	•	0.1	0.5	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.8	E1.0	0.1	0.3	N/A
AND	SI	MCTIONS	INADE- QUATE	9										
ANCE		T	ADE- QUATE	ຄ	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	н	N/A
INTEN		LEVEL /crew N Ct RAL	RECOM- MENDED	4	U	0	U	U	0	0	C	U	0	N/A
MA		MAINT C - 00ER 0 - 08GZ F - 01RE	PRE- SCRIBED	n	0	0	υ	0	0	0	0	o	0	O
		COMPORENT AND RELATED	OPERATIONS	2	Signaling Devices Bell, Alara Inspect	Replace	Pickup Head Service	Inspect	Test	Replace	Repair	Líght Bolder Assembly Inspect	Keplace	Light Bulb Window Assembly Service
		680UF			4209		4209							
							IV-	A-5						

---**-**-

	RE MARKS		01	Cun only be inspected	· fromseenern Switting	Can only be inspected during disassumbly.					Inspect externally.	Instructions are .	uzdequate try Live,
	REASON		0	Sim	Sim	Sim	Sta	1	Sta B	Sîm	, Sta	Sta	
	LIFE H-HOURS	M-MILES	8	-				. '		•			
	IVE ENANCE ME	MAN- HOURS	7	0.1	0.7	0.5	С•5		1. 0	0.5	0.1	0.3	- -
8	ACT	CLOCK		0.1	0.1	0.5	0.5	- -	0.1	0.5	0.1	0.3	
SIMULAT	M DCTIONS	INADE- QUATE	9			·						×	×
	T	ADE- QUATE	S	Х	×	×	x	\$	< ×	X	×		
	LEVEL /CREW N CT	RECOM	\$	0	0	o	0	c	, 0	G	0	0	
	MAINT C-OPER C-OPER F-O:REZ	PRE-	3	0	0	Ö	0	c	0	0	0	0	
	COMPONENT AND	OPERATIONS	8	Inspect	Replace	Light Bulb Inspect	Replace	Simulator	Inspect	Replace	Photo Cell Assembly Inspect	Replace	Photo Cell Window Assembly
	GROUP NO.		-					4209					

APPEND'X IV-A MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART

56

IV-A- 6

MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART SIMULATED

	<u>.</u>		ب	 ~			3.					01.2]
RE MARKS		01	Not applicable excep on disassembly.	Can only be inspect. during disassembly.			See EPR L7-2 and L7-	See EPR L7-2 and L7-	See EPR Li'=2 and L7-	See EPR L7-2 and Li-	See EPR L7-2 and L7-	Repair is not recom- mended at organizati level.		
REASON PERFORMED		6	N/A	Sim	Sta		Sta	Sta	Stim	Stim	Sta		Sta	
LIFE H-HOURS M-WILES		60											·	
TIVE ENANCE ME	HOURS	P -	N/A	0.1	0.3		G. J.	0,1	0.T	0.1	0.2			
ACT	FLOCK		M/A	0.1	0,3		0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2		0.1	
MCTIONS	INADE- QUATE	9										×		
INSTRU	ADE- QUATE	5	N/A	×	×		×	×	×	×	×		×	
LEVEL /CREW N CT RAL	RECOM-	•	N/A	0	0		•	0	0	0	0	A	U	
MAINT C-OPER 0-ORGZ F-DIRE H-GENE	PRE- SCRIBED	n	c	0	C		0	0	0	0	ن ن	0	υ	
COMPONENT AND RELATED	OPERATIONS	~	Service	Inspect	Replace	Instruments Amolifier	Adjust	Celibrate	Inspect	Test	Replace	Repair	Recorder Service	
GROUP NO.		-				4210							4210	

٧-٧	
L X	
PERND	
R	

MAINTENANCE AND RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART SIMILATED

-		-	-	-			_					_			and the state of t	
	re marks		10		Not considered	•arowstrdde			Repairs not recom- mariad helow denot	level.					kevi ewed.	
	REASON			Sta	N/A	Stre	Sta	Sta	N/A			Sta	Star	Sta	Stæ	
	LIFE H-HOURS		•													
	IVE ENANCE NE	MAN- HOURS	•	0.2	N/N	0.1	0.1	1°C	N/N			0.1	0.1	0.5	^B 1.0	
	MAINT	NOOCH NOOCH		0.2	N/N	0.1	0.1	0.1	V/N			0.1	0.1	0.5	E1.0	
	MCTIONS	MADE- DUATE	•		×				X							-
	T INSTRU	ADE- OUNTE	• 1	ي:		×	×	×				×	×	×	×	
LEVEL	CREW N ST	RECORP	•	0	N/A	0	0	0	A			0	0	O	0	
MAINT	C - 09ER 0 - 026Z F - 01RE	PRE- SCRIBED	1	0	O	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	
	COMPONENT AND BELATED	OPERATIONS	~	Adjust	Calibrate	Inspect	Test	Replace	Repair		Fluid Sys Control	Valve Assem- bly Service	Invpact	Rep Lace	Repair	
	GROUP NO.		; -								43					
								IV-1	A-0							

MAINTENANCE AN RELIABILITY ANALYSIS CHART

		01			N/N				
REASON		6	Sta	Star	*	Sta	ßim		
	M-MILES	0							
TIVE TENANCE	MAN-	-	0.3	¢•0	N/N	0.3	0.5		۱۳۵۹ میلود در ۱۳۵۰ میلود اور با با میلود با
MAINT			0.3	0.5	N/N	0,3	0.5		
3	Brack-	9							
	ADE -	0	X	X	¥/R	×	×		
LEVEL CREW	RAL RECOM-	•	٥	0	N/A	0	0	₽ 4206)	
C - 0968		1 12	0	o	0	o	0	(See Gro	
COMPONENT	RELATED	~	Diaphran Assambly Inspect	Rep Ince	Rezerr	Seat Inspect	Roplace	Velva, 3- vay, Solenafd Operated	
SROUP NO.				-					

59

PARTS ANALYSIS CHART

INSTRUCTION

<u>GENERAL</u>: This chart is a list of the parts which were used in maintaining the test item. Parts will be ground in this chart by functional groups and in Federal Stock Number (FSN) numerical order within each group.

COLUMN DESCRIPTION

- 1. Group Number (Sequence Number). Parts usage by maintenance operation is indicated by cross referencing the group number and sequence number in Column 1 of the Maintenance and Reliability Analysis Chart.
- 2. Federal Stock Number. Record the Federal Stock Number, Technical Services Part Number, Manufacturer's Part Number, or Drawing Number in this order of preference.
- 3. Noun Nomenclature. Self-explanatory.
- Maintenance Level, Prescribed. The maintenance level prescribed by the parts list under review. Use the code: C - Operator/Crew; O - Organizational; F - Direct Support; H - General Support.
- 5. Maintenance Level, Recommended. The code symbols C, O, F or H indicate the maintenance level recommended by the test agency.
- 6. Part Life. The number of operating hours (essential) and miles, rounds, effects, etc., as required by the test plan, accumulated by this part. This is <u>True Part Life</u> and should agree with the part life reported on the EPR. Each entry in this column is followed by the appropriate life unit symbol; i.e., H, M, or R, etc.
- 7. Reason Used. The symbol "Unscd" will be shown in this column if this part was replaced as a result of unscheduled maintenance. If the part was replaced as a required action of a scheduled maintenance service, the symbol "Scd" will be used. If the part was consumed to verify procedures or tools, not to correct a malfunction, the symbol "Sim" will be used.
- 8. Remarks. If an EPR is related to the part used, the EPR reference number will be inserted in this column. When the part was replaced to correct a failure, as defined in this regulation, it will be indicated by inserting the word "Failure" in this column.

IV-B-1

APPENDLY IV-B

PARTS ANALYSIS CHART

				TIAN EN			
GP NO CROSS REF	PEDERAL STOCE	MOUNI MOUNI		itational :t :al	M - Mules M - Mours	REASON USED	REMARKS
-	2	6		5	9	~	30
4209	2014696 2014696	Simulator O-Rings (packing)	00	00	N/A N/A	Unsch. Unsch.	During initial T.I. after Eng. test prior to service test- 4 inch test item.
1+206	IM-8314 A25 serial # 32331N	Solenoid	Q	0	136	Unsch.	50 GPM 2-Inch Totamitor EPR L-7-1
li210	14869	Recorder	Q	0	231	Unsch.	50 GPM 2-Inch Tctamitor EPR L-7-4
013	14869 Model 28	Recorder	o	0	301	Unsch.	400 GPM 4-Inch Totamitor EFA was not submitted.
4209	(06189) 116668	Window	0	0	301	1) hsch.	400 GPM 4-Inch Totomitor
f1509	(81483) A7PL	Proto cell	C	0	301	Unsch.	400 CPM 4-Inch Totamitor
fr205	AMXRE-MPL- 471-B	Adapter "B"	0	o	301	Unsch .	400 GPK 4-Inch Totsaiter
						•	•

IV-8-2

уŶ.

MAINTENANCE PACKAGE LITERATURE CHART

INSTRUCTION SHEET - DESCRIPTION

COLUMN

- 1. Give Army or menufacturer's publication or draft manual number.
- 2. Number of copies received. Insert "O" if none were supplied. Use Fara III i, Chapter 9, of AR 310-3 as a guide to determine those manuscripts and publications that should accompany the test item. Manuscripts and publications contained in the maintenance package should cover operations and functions through general support maintenance and should specify the categories involved.
- 3. Complete title.
- 4. Fill in date manuscript (MSS) or publication was received.
- 5. Fill in date test item or materiel was received.
- 6. Insert "X" in appropriate block. Minor errors on 1598 forms are not in themselves sufficient reason to term a manuscript inadequate. Evaluation may be omitted if fewer than 25% of the specified maintenance operations were performed.
- 7. Insert date 1598 form was forwarded and 1598 form reference No.
- 8. In addition to appropriate remarks, explain if manuscript was not evaluated.

TV-C-1
	CHART
D-V	LITERATURE
APPENDIX	PACKAGE
	MAINTENANCE

No. of the second

na San San

•

recommended, updating design, parts data, and additional instruc tions at the organiza-tional level. Major revision is kenarks 6 Reference No. and date fud 8 Forw 1598 EPR L7-7 Inadqt Eveluation × Adqt ອ Materiel Date Received Dec 68 Dec 88 LLt 4 FE, and Fuel Tester 400-GFM, Model 861-2-IS-44 UF Maintenance Mamual Fuel Tester, 50. 22M Model 861-7-15-2 **Organizational Operator** and Title 1 Manuscript QEY 2 N Number DIM 10-10-207-12

XV-C-2

63

RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO DRAFT TECHNICAL MANUAL						
RECORD OF COMMENTS ON PUBLICATIONS	969					
Wasker Fuel Tester, Int. Engineer-Service Test,						
USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-09						
DTM 10-4930-207-12, Operator & Organizational Maintenance Manual, Fuel Tester, 50 GPM, Model 861-F-LS-2-FE, December 1966						
ITEM PAGE PARAGRAPH LINE COMMENT (Exact wording of recommended change must be given.)						
1 vi Section Change: "Preoperational test and adjustment 3-to "Preoperational test and adjustment 3-to "Preoperational test must be performed before "Indicating meter zero test and adjustment 3-can be performed.	•15" •12" •12"					
2 vi Section V V Ange: "Amplifier sensitivity calibration 3- and "Alarm setting adjustment 3- to "3-14" and "3-15", respectively. <u>Explanation</u> : Change necessary in order to correspond with change in item 1 above.	•13" •14" nd					
3 1-4a Figure Delete: "Alerm Adjustment"; add: "Plug Calibration 1-3 Screw." Explanation: "Plug Calibration Screw" is used as no clature on Page 3-7a, Fig 3-4, and it eppears logical	n Men-					
4 1-4b Figure <u>add a section of conduit to the illustration.</u> 1-4 <u>Explanation</u> : For identification purposes.						
5 1-7a Figure 1-5 <u>Letters A and B on the line leading to the control ware not lettered on the test item. Additional identication is desired.</u> <u>Explanation</u> : Self expanatory.	alve ifi-					
6 2-2 Section II, 2-5 <u>Correct spelling: Dismantling.</u> Explanation: Spelling error.						
7 2-2b Figure Delete: "Alarm Adjustment". Add: "Plug Calibratic 2-2 Screw". Explanation: Same item 3.	n.					
8 2-2b Figure Step <u>Delece</u> : "Figure 1." Add: "Figure 1-5." 2-2 3 <u>Explanation</u> : Figure 1-5 is the wiring diagram.						
9 2-2c Figure Step <u>Delete</u> : "Figure 1." Add: "Figure 1-5." 2-3 3 <u>Explanation</u> : Same as item 8 above.						
102-2dFigureStepDelete: "Figure 1."Add: "Figure 1-5."2-41Explanation: Same as item 8 above.						
11 2-3a Figure Delete: "Alarm Adjustment"; add: "Plug Calibration 2-6 Screw." Explanation: Same as item 3 above.	L					
12 3-1 3-1 See EPR L7-2. The hollow head screws furnished with item require a wrench shorter than the one furnished standard mechanics tool set.	test in					
* Reference to the number within the Determined on the submanagement						

64 FORM 1598

IV-D-1

RECI	T Fue	COMMENTS ON	PUBLICATION	For use of this form, see LR 370 agency is Office of the Assisten for Face Days! stunt. Int. Engineer-Serv 239-09	-J; the proposent EAVE Chief of Staff 26 Fr 1CE TEST,	ebruary 1969
EVISIO	N HOTES	Test	-4930-207-12	2, Operator & Organizac Model 361-F-LS-2-FE	ional Maintenanc	e Manual, Fue
ITEM NO.	PAGE	PARAGRAPH	LINE *	COMMENT (Exact wording of re	commended shange must be	fivon.)
12	3-1 (Co	3-1 ntinuéd)	Expla stand Fig I the	anation: Either the sc dard hexagon head type, D=1, item 26, or a spec test item.	rews must be chan as indicated on ial wrench furnio	nged to Page D-21, shed with
13	3-2	Following Par 3-5 of Sec III	<u>Add</u> :	Paragraph 3-5a Valve, Solenoid, Thre LMB314A25, Fails to c energized.	e way (04845) lose when soleno:	lā is
			Prob	ble Cause	Post	tible Remedy
			Low t	attery voltage	Charge batte	ry
			Loose	e electrical connection	Check and the electrical of	ighten all connections
			Short syste check short	circuit in electrical m. Use multimeter to for continuity and circuits	Repair short and replace units	t circuite defective
			Inope Check a. D a b. E P F c. I t i	erative solenoid as follows: bisconnect tube assembly t Port C, Fig 3-8 mergize valve assembly bushing simulator buttor uel should stop flowing hrough Port C. f fuel continues to flo hrough Port C, the sole s defective.	Replace sole operated thy valve, LMB31 by 1. 3 mw enoid	moid Se way 14A25
			<u>Expla</u> instr malfu	nation: Service testin uctions when the valve nctioned, EPR L7-1.	ng developed the solenoid, three	abov: way,
14	3-4	Section IV, 3-10	4 <u>Delet</u> Expla endin	e period after "light." nation: Sentence conti g after "photo cell."	nues on next pag	e (3-5),
15	3-48	Figure 3-1	<u>Delet</u> Expla is th line	e: "Photo Cell". Add: nation: Photo cell is e nomenclature used for 1, Fig D-1, item 15.	"Adapter." inside of adapte parts data, Pag	r. Adapter e D-10,
Refere	inco la line ORM 9	number within the j	permoraph or subper	agraph.		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Traces of

Ì.

Ł.

2

APPENDIX	IV-D
----------	------

	6 7	Fuel Tester,		Int. Engineer-Service Test,
	ON NOTES	USATECOM Pro	01ect N	0. 7=3=0239=09 30=207=12 Commenter & Commentered and the statement of Made to a Marine &
		Fuel	Teste	r, 50 GPM, Model 861-F-LS-2-FE, December 1966
TEM NO.	PAGE	PARAGRAPH	LINE .	COMMENT (Exect wording of recommended change must be given.)
16	3-4a	Figure 3-1		Add additional instructions to remove photo cell follow- ing "Step 4." Explanation: Instructions are incomplete (EPR L7-5).
17	3-6	3-1 2		Revise instructions (EPR L7-3) and re-mamber paragraph from "3-12" to "3-13." <u>Explanation</u> : Paragraph 3-15 should be paragraph 3-12 because paragraph 3-15a and 3-15b must be performed before indicating meter can be adjusted to mero.
18	3-6	3-13	•	Change paragraph 3-13 to 3-14. Explanation: To accommodate item 17.
19	3-7	3-14		<u>Change</u> paragraph 3-14 to 3-15. <u>Explanation</u> : To accommodate item 18.
20	3-64	Figure 3-3		<u>Correct</u> illustration. <u>Explanation</u> : The pickup head being tested does not have an electrical connector (EPR L7-3), and a special short angle hollow head wrench is required to follow the instructions.
21	3-9	3-15		<u>Change</u> to paragraph 3-12. <u>Explanation</u> : Paragraph 3-15a, 1 and 2, preoperational tests and adjustments must be performed prior to present paragraphs 3-12, 3-13, and 3-14.
22	C=7	4210 Amplifier	Col H	Delete "O"; add "D". Explanation: Depot maintenance allocation is recommended to repair because tools, skills and spare parts are not adequate at "O" level.
23	C-8	4210 Recorder	Col H	Delete "O"; add "H". Explanation: Same as item 22.
84	D-10	Section II Rpr Parts	2	Assign part number to body pickup head, 50 GPM. Explanation: Parts cannot be ordered without a part number.
25	D-10		3	Assign part number to body pickup head, 400 GPM. Explanation: Same as item 24.
6	D-10		6	Assign part number to cover, junction box. Explanation: Same as item 24.
1	D- 10		7	Assign part number to gasket rubber. Explanation: Same as item 24.

60 PORM 1598

IV-D-3

u sji	F	uel Tester,		Int. Engineer-Service Test.
	U	SATECOM Proj	ect No	<u>7-3-0239-09</u>
- V I 1	ION NOTES	DTM	10-493	0-20/-12, Operator & Organizational Maintenance Manual,Fu
		<u>T</u>	ester,	50 GPM, Model 861-F-LS-2-7E, Duc maber 1965
TEM NO.	PAGE	PARAGRAPH	LINE *	COMMENT (Exact wording of rec
28	9-11	Section II, Repair Parts	2	Assign part number to acrew machine, lightshield mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
29	D-12		. 2	Assign part number to screw machine, photo cell mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
30	D-12		3	Assign part number to screw cap socket head window mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
31	D-12		4	Assign part number to acrew machine window mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
32	D-12		5	Assign part number to screw, cap hexagon head cover mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
33	D-12		6	Assign part number to screw machine adapter mtg. Explanation: Same as item 24.
34	D −1 3		2	Assign part number to nut. Explanation: Same as item 24.
5	D-13		3	Assign part number to connector. Explanation: Same as item 24.
16	D-13		4	Assign part number to ferruls. Explanation: Same as item 24.
7	D-14		2	Assign part number to fuse. Explanation: Same as item 24.
8	D-14		5	Assign part number to adapter, male. Explanation: Same as item 24.
9	D-14		6	Assign part number to adapter pipe. Explanation: Same as item 24.
0	D-15			Assign part number to connectors. Explanation: Same as item 24.
1	D-15		4	Assign part number to elbow, pipe to tube. Explanation: Same as item 24.
2	D-1 6		7 <u>A</u>	Assign part number to tube assembly VALVE. Explanation: Same as item 24.
	D-16		8 A 1	useign part number to washer diaphram: Valve. Splanation: Same as item 24.

AP?ENDIX IV-D

DA, 2014, 1598

į,

IV-D-4

67

APPENDIX IV-D

12.

i.

JECI		Fuel Tector		list Force Development. 20 February 1907
		USATECOM Pro	, Diect N	10. 7-3-0239=09
V1510	NNOTES	DT!	4 10-49	30-207-12, Operator & Organizational Maintenance Manual
		Fuel	Teste	r, 50 GPM, Model 861-F-LS-2-FE, December 1966
NO.	PAGE	PARAGRAPH	LINE *	COMMENT (Exact wording at recommended change must be given.)
4 /4	D- 17	Section II Repair Parts	2 and 3	Assign part number to tube assembly. Explanation: Same as item 24.
45	D-17	·	4	Assign part number to valve control, solenoid operated. Explanation: Same as item 24.
46	D-18		6	Assign part number to bolt machine. Explanation: Same as item 24.
47	D 18		•7	Assign part number to washer lock. Explanation: Same as item 24.
48	D-18		8	Assign part number to washer flat. Explanation: Same as item 24.
49	D-18		9	Assign part number to nut, plain hexagon. Explanation: Same as item 24.
50	D-20	1	5	Assign size and material to tubing. Explanation: Parts cannot be ordered without size and material being given.
51	₽ -23	Figure D-3	15	<u>Delete</u> : "Elbow"; add: "Valve" solenoid, three way. <u>"xplanation</u> : Error in nomenclature.
Retier		e number within the		
·				and the present property of the second s

1V-)-5

APPENDIX V. REFERENCES

- 1. Final Letter Report of Engineer Design Test of Effluent Fuel Tester, USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-01, dated 19 January 1965.
- Interim Letter Report, Engineering Test Portion of Integrated EST of Fuel Tester, Effluent, USATECOM Project No. 7-2-2239-02, dated 2 July 1965.
- 3. DA Approved Military Characteristics for Effluent Fuel Tester.

.

. .

- 4. Test Directive, USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-06/07/08/09 Fuel Tester Effluent, dated 30 June 1965.
- 5. Plan of Test for Integrated Engineering/Service Test of Fuel Tester, Effluent, dated August 1964.
- Safety Release USATECOM Project No. 7-3-0239-06/07/09, Engineering Service and Environmental Tests of Fuel Tester, Effluent, 50/400 GPM Fuel Tester.
- Military Specification MIL-F-8901B, 15 August 1966, Filter/Separtors, Aviation and Motor Fuel, Ground and Shipboard Use, Performance Requirements and Test Procedures For.

I. FUEL TESTERS TUEL CONTANKATION J. PERTJANANCE TESTS I. Galdred, Danisi S. Wedoll. Prederick G., 2LT Harvey. Joseph C. II. Title: Intertated Engineering and Bervis Test of Effluent Z FUEL CONTANENATION PERPORTANENCE TESTS L Gallerd, Dunid S. Vedall, Predatick G. 21-Harvey, Janga G. L. This: Bangrand Equicating and Barvice Test of Efficient 111. USATECOM 7-3-0239-09 Fuel Testur III. USATECOM 7-3-0239-09 UNCLASSIFIED UNCLASSIFIED THEL TESTERS Fuel Testur ... An integrated Engineering and Bervice Test of the Efflower Two Freedor was conducted during the particul perfor-1946 - Tebeurary 1960 to determine the technical perfor-mance and safety characteristics and the test liters as destributed in the Military Consorcitoristics, and as indicated by the particular design; and to determine the unitability of the fuel testor and its maintenance package for use by the It was concluded that: the test litern meets the resulterments of the Alkitary Characteristics with the arceptian of the difficiencies and abortcoming (Par. 1, 4a and b); technical performance was assistantly and sufficiently arcwards to An Lingurated Rugineering and Service Test of the Effluent Fuel Freed was conducted during the period between-1940 - Tabutury 1940 to determine the method perior-ranace and addry characteristics and he best hom as described in the Milliary Constructionics, was a indexend by the particular design; and to determine the minability of the feel tester and its maintenance package for use by the It was concluded that: the test tiem mosts the requirement of the Military Characteristics with the proving of the deficiencies and shortcomings (Past, 1,40 and s); technical INTEGRATED ENGINEERING AND SERVICE TEAT OF EFFLUENT JULE TESTER, by Daniel S. Gafberd, 2LT Frederick O. Wooll, and Josoph T. Harvey, March 1990, 17 p. 1-tables. - tillus. - creates. 6 Appendices 21773, (TECOM Proj. Kc. 7-3-0239-09) Unclassified Report INTEGLATED ENGIPERING AND SERVICE TOT OF EFFLUENT VIEL TESTER, by Daniel S. Oafer 7 21-1 Proball, and Jacop R. Rurvey, M. 3, 1990, 713, 1, 1-table, - Jilles, - 6 Appendices p1-73, (TECOM Prej. No. 7-1-0219-07) Unclastified Report performance was esticiartery and sufficiently accurate to U. B. Army Constal Equipment Tent Activity, Fort Les. Accession M. Accession Na. U. S. Army Coneral Equipment Test Activity, Part Lee. Virginia Virginia Army. Army. Ş 9 I. FUEL TEFTERS T FUEL CONTAMENTION S. FUEL CONTAMENTION S. PERFORMANCE TESTS I. OLIOFAL. Davist S. Wedell, Frederick G., 2LT Marvey. Joseph T. II. Title: Integrade Exgineering and Spirvice Test of Effluent I. FUEL TEATERS T. FUEL TEATERS T. FUEL CONTAMENTANA T. PERTORMANCE TEATS I. Guiderd, Danis S. Wadell, Prederick G., 2LT Marvey, Steeph C. II. THE: Langrade Explored and Barrise Test of Effluent IL. USATECOM 1-3-6239-09 Thei Testar II. UAATECOM 7-3-0139-09 UNCLARATED UNCLARGINED I use overlanded that: the test item months frequencing a site hallmary Characteristics with the exception of the deficiencies and about consisting (EPs., 1, 46 and h); technical ericonnaise was assistenting and auflicently accurate to B. was concluded that, the lost losm more the requirements of the biblioury Characteristic will be encounted on all deficienties and morecoming a Pace, 1, do and wy technical performance can emblactery and exciting percents or encounted to an encounter and construction. An integrated Engineering and Service Test of the Effluent Two: Treaser use conducted during the parted ferencing their Treaser use to conduct during the testimical parter-makes and addry character size of the test Hern an exercised in the Millioury "Conservation tolers, and indicated by the power and Millioury "Conservations the outballity of the fuel searce and size maintenance; uchage for use by the DIFEGRATED EW DMERNUG AND SKAVICE TEST OF KETLUENT FULL (ESTER, by Damei S. Oldera, 2.LT Frankrick D. Macall, and Jasaph T. Marway, March 1990, 7) p. - Habad, "Hub., "Staght, 5 Appendicat p37-73, (TECOM Proj. No. 7-3-0239-09) Unclassified Report DITEORATED ENGINEERING AND SERVICE TET OF EFFLUEET FUEL TEATER, by Daniel R. Galleri, LUE Projecta G. Bradil, and Joseph T. Russey, Ahred 190, 17 pp. - Habil, - GTENKA, 9 Appendion 27(9), (TECOM Proj. Ja., 1-3-4479-49) Unclassified Report An integrated Engineering and Service Took of the Efflance Fuel Feature was conducted during the period Pairwary Fuel Feature was conducted during the periodical perfor-ments and entry characteristics of the test from to accelerate advection during the section of the during the section and the maintenance periodical during the fail testure and its maintenance periodic for use by the Accession No. U. S. Army Denoral Equiper is Tool Activity, Poot Lon. Ascession No. U. B. Army General Equipment (fest Activity, Fert Les. X. Taken Virginia. r F ş 2

South States

71

100 C

and the second se

Sector A

S

[

Start Sa

requires the pressure of x^{-1} commutants to which is our supposed with the supplier of the subserver or their, these statements probability collectly previous and consulty to predering only are conformation-times dimension presentation. For, (1, 2, 3) and hances and consulty to predering only are but one was means compliants (Par., 1, 40 and (1, 2, 3)). It is recommended that: the Rillman Paul Teatry is considered and outliefs for two by the Army solar Hammed Harmondone (Hamme combined (1))²⁰ to $(M^2 T_{c})$ until the two deficiencies and to many to produce the discrete description of App. 20 here have considered that the two deficiencies and to many (Pur. 1.14 and App. 1.24 to address to dependent and adjusted with the transition of an analytic Hammed in prospects 1.24 to address to a protection have due demonstra

regioner the prevents of all contaminants to which it was appoind with the conception of the allicense and durit the test tests in additionally related a callery providence and expending to perform axisy are continued-ripeo additional processions. Thus, 1, 9, 1); and human "serves considerations are axisy are fastery with sideor encoptions (per. 1, 40 and 2, 7, 3); It is reconstructed that: the fiftheons frost focus for and buood and suitable for use by the Army under Hackbod Supermediate allowants conditions (/10° to 100°F.) until the two deficiencies and as many producted and above construct (App. 10° how how corrected), dealt included summed by review (Ptr. 1. All and App. 17-D); a promoval and object with manufactures by increased in respire parts Hand is prograph 1. At he added to the presentated hand allowance.

> requires the presented of of concentrates to which it was expected with the encoding of the oblicant and that, they confirmed propriation with the order provided and expeditive to perform $\alpha_{i,i}$ by an exclored -(i.e.) additional propriation. We, A. O. Di and became interval considerations are outly are interval with strate intervalues. The set A. D. Di, and became interval considerations are outly interval with strate intervalues. The set A. D. Di,

B is reconceptual that, the BiConte Paul Teans is resident at animals for use by the Army while homomorphic matrix theory completes $(1)p^2$ is 10²V.) and as two definitions and as final provident of the transmission from the two bars and matrix for the balance final to resident them. If the and App 17-18, is the second and matrix and matrix an isotrophic for the Bars is provident 1–10 to other and matrix and matrix an isotrophic for the balance from the provident 1–10 to other and matrix and matrix an isotrophic parts

Poglater the processo of all concentiones to which it was expended with the envytion of the ollicone for them: the processo of all concentiones to which providence and capability is protein which context them: (i.e., elses which providence (PLP, el.S. N) and human functions can be be be allowed and four environment for a supplement (PLP, el.S. N) and human functions can be be allowed and explicitly the second four environment of the second seco

B.1: Assessmented due: you Billions Pool Process to considered and animals for use by the Annual Annual Pool Pool and Annual Pool (1997 to 1997), and 2017 and 201

the star start threating of state. As the of shares of an	NY CONTROL DA	ta - RED				
(Security coverification - 2016, doay of sector of ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)		24 829	ORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION			
Department of the Army		UNC	LASSIFIED			
5. S. Army General Equipment Test /	Activity	25 6RG				
Fort Lee, Virginia 23801						
J. REPORT TITLE						
Integrated Engineering and Service	Test of Efflu	ent Fuel Ter	ster			
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive de	lates)					
Final Report AutHOP(3) (Loui nome, first name, initial)						
GAFFORD, Daniel S.; WEDELL, Freder	ick G., 2LT; H	ARVEY, Josef	oh T.			
I. REPORT DATE	74. TOTAL		78. NO. OF RRP3 7			
ABTCR 1969	94.05(6))		I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I			
an na tona sun anna taga		I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	ym # 117(¥)			
5. PROJECT NO. UNATECOM 7-3-0239-09						
¢.	Sb. OTHER	ENORT NO(S) (A	y other numbers that may be seet(ned			
		π,	•			
d.			-			
O AVAILABILITY/LINITATION NOTICES Th	is document ma	y be further	distributed by any			
nolder only with specific prior ap Equipment Command, St. Louis, Miss	proval of <u>Comm</u> ouri.	anding Gener	cal, U. S. Army Mobility			
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSOR	ING MILITARY AC	TIVITY			
	U. S. A	rmy Mobility	y Equipment Command			
None		St. Louis, Missouri				
1 ABSTRACT	St. Lou	is, Missouri				
An Integrated Engineering and ducted during the period February performance and safety characterist Characteristics, and as ind' ated b suitability of the fuel teller and It was concluded that: the test Characteristics with the exception and b); technical performance was ter the presence of all contaminant the siliceous test dust; the test and capability to perform safely at 2.9.3); and human factors considers (Fars. 1.4e and 2.7.3). It is recommended that: the Efficiencies and as man have been corrected; draft technica a photocell and adapter with attach paragraph 1.6d be added to the presence	Service Test of 1968 - Februar tics of the te by the particul its maintenan t item meets the of the deficil satisfactory a ts to which it item is adequa re confirmed- ations are sat fluent Fuel Te truediate clima my as practica al manual be r hed wires he is scribed load a	f the Efflue y 1969 to de st item as of lar design; ce package i he requireme encies and a nd sufficien was exposed tely reliabl (see addition isfactory with ster be const tic condition ble of the s evised (Par, ssued; and n llowance,	ent Fuel Tescer was con- etermine the technical lescribed in the Militan and to determine the for use by the Army. ents of the Military shortcomings (Par. 1.4a atly accurate to regis- d with the exception of le; safety provisions onal precautions, Par. th minor exceptions sidered not suitable for ons (+10° to 100°F) un- shortcomings (App. III) , 1.5d and App. IV-D); repair parts listed in			
An Integrated Engineering and ducted during the period February performance and safety characteris Characteristics, and as ind' ated is suitability of the fuel teller and It was concluded that: the tes Characteristics with the exception and b); technical performance was ther the presence of all contaminant the siliceous test dust; the test and capability to perform safely and (Pars. 1.4e and 2.7.3). It is recommended that: the Efficiencies and as man have been corrected; draft technical a photocell and adapter with attach paragraph 1.6d be added to the presence D 107.1473	Service Test of 1968 - Februar tics of the te by the particul its maintenan t item meets the of the defici satisfactory a ts to which it item is adequa re confirmed ations are sat fluent Fuel Te truediate climate any as practicate al manual be r thed wires he is	f the Efflue y 1969 to de st item as of lar design; ce package i he requireme encies and a nd sufficien war exposes tely reliabl (see addition isfactory wing ster be const tic condition ble of the se evised (Part ssued; and the llowance.	ent Fuel Tescer was con- etermine the technical described in the Militan and to determine the for use by the Army. ents of the Military shortcomings (Par. 1.4a atly accurate to regis- d with the exception of le; safety provisions onal precautions, Par. Ith minor exceptions eidered not suitable for ons (+10° to 100°F) un- shortcomings (App. III) , 1.5d and App. IV-D); repair parts listed in			

and the second sec

١.

.

ţ

.

UNCLASSIFIED

Security Classification

14. KEY WORDS	LINK 4		LINK		LINK C	
	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT
Effluent fuel testens						
Ennuent lues testers						
Fuel testers						
Fuel contamination						
Filter/separator						
Fuel filters						
Separators						
Performance tests						
Service tests						

INSTRUCTIONS

1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of Defense activity or other organization (co:porate author) issuing the report.

2e. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordance with appropriate socurity regulations.

25. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Directive 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.

3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.

4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.

5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middls initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal author is an absolute statement or selection.

6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.

7a. TOTAL NUMPER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.

7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES. Enter the total number of references cited in the report.

8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.

80, 80, & 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc.

9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.

95. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).

10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further dissemination of the report, other than those imposed by security classification, using standard statements such as:

(1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC."

- (2) "Foreign suncancement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."
- (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through
- (4) "U.S. military sgencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through
- (5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through

If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate this fact and enter the price, if known.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes.

12. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Entry the name of the departmental project office or laboratory sponsoring (*pey-ing for*) the research and development. Include address.

13. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elsewhere is the body of the technical report. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.

It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified reports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (TS), (S), (C), or (U).

There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words.

14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no accurity classification is required. Idenfiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, military project code name, geographic location, may be used as key words but will be followed by an indication of technical context. The assignment of links, rules, and weights is optional.

